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Chairman’s Message

| am pleased to present AFRINIC’s Annual Report and Financial Statements for the Financial Year 2021.
The Audited Financial Statements for FY 2021 indicate that the company is in a healthy financial position.

There was an 8% increase in our membership fees revenue, from USD 5,532,620 in 2020 to 5,978,261 in
2021. Expenses increased by 16%, from USD 3,537,973 in 2020 to USD 4,119,317 in 2021.

The Board of Directors held 23 meetings and 75 board resolutions were taken in 2021. The minutes and

resolutions of all Board meetings are published on our website.

An additional amount of USD 2,000,000 was added to the Strategic Cash Reserve in May 2021.

The company successfully organised both its meetings, the Africa Internet Summit 2021 and AFRINIC-34,

and its Annual General Members Meeting online.




The company encountered an issue about how to keep its operations running when its bank accounts were
frozen in July 2021, following a Court Order related to a dispute with one of its members. AFRINIC was able to
have the Court Order lifted in October 2021. We disclosed the status of ongoing cases in the Audited Financial

Statements for FY 2021 in line with our commitment to transparency.

The Board of Directors reviewed the Strategic Plan for 2021-2023 in December 2021. The evaluation report is
available on our website. Going forward, we will continue our efforts to increase the effectiveness of the
company to help improve its value to our members.

Finally | wish to thank our members and our vibrant community for their support.

Subramanian Moonesamy

Chairman, Board of Directors
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Message from the CEO

| am pleased to present this report of AFRINIC’s activities in 2021. This year also, we had to adapt to the
changes brought about by the global pandemic as we continued to deliver on our operational activities.

In 2021, we distributed 282,624 IPv4 addresses, 140 IPv6 prefixes and 226 AS Numbers.
AFRINIC welcomed 153 new members during the year with a total of 1,989 members.

The policy development working group has also been active and this year we received eight policy
proposals that were thoroughly discussed by our community.

Our training continues to be in high demand with over 1400 registrants for our e-learning courses, 364
professionals participated in 4 webinars, in addition to 64 engineers who participated in 5 e-deployathons

and our IPv6 deployment helpdesk attended to 66 DO help desk requests from 23 countries.

We continued to engage closely with our stakeholders with the signature of six new MoUs that are geared
towards the implementation of Internet development activities in our service region. We also launched our
Jenga project meaning "Building Up" in Swahili In our effort to leverage the services offered to AFRINIC
Members and Stakeholders. Jenga consists in conducting both virtual and on-site on-site meetings with the
AFRINIC members, ICT regulators, Governments, and AFRINIC Community members to discuss challenges

and foster avenues of sustainable collaboration.



On the financial operations side, we have achieved a surplus of $ 1,917K representing a 24.3% growth in our
total reserves which is increased to $ 9,997K from $ 8,041K in 2020..

- On the technical side, it is very encouraging to note that RPKI adoption has increased by 71% in 2021.

We organised successful AlS'21 and AFRINIC 34 Meetings online with over 600 online participants attending
both events. Thank you to all our sponsors for the support that has contributed to the success of both
- meetings.

This year, we had to face the challenge of having our bank accounts temporarily frozen as a result of a Court
Order following a dispute with one of our members. However, this freeze was eventually waived. | take this
opportunity to deeply thank our membership, community, suppliers, and staff for their unwavering support
during these challenging times. A special word of thanks to our donors, partners and dedicated volunteers on
various committees and working groups.

| invite you to go through the pages of this report to read more about our achievements. | wish you all a
pleasant read.

Eddy Kayihura

Chief Executive Officer
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We received

227

DO Helpdesk Requests from

40

countries

We conducted

4

capacity building webinars
recording

362

participants

We conducted

92

Helpdesk Calls for

52

Organisations

We conducted

5

e-Deployathons, attended by

64

engineers from

45

organisations




Blogs and Social Media

63

blog posts and
news
published.

652

Youtube
Subscribers
over 203 more
than at the
start of 2021.

8066

Facebook Page
Likes,
over 357 more
than at the
start of 2021.

0

607

Instagram
Followers over
117 more than
at the start of
2021.

Popular Campaigns included: AIS’21 Online, AFRINIC 34 Online, AFRINIC Jenga, IPv6 Webinars and Elearning

10k+

Twitter
Followers, over
623 more than
at the start of

2021.

3187
Linkedin
Followers over
328 more than
at the start of
2021.



Highlights of January - March

Report on AFRINIC’s
WHOIS Database Accuracy

A Comprehensive audit of
the AFRINIC WHOIS

Database

CEQ's Monthly Update -
January 2021

February

Call for Comments on the

AFRINIC Mailing Lists
Terms of Use

AFRINIC and ATU sign a
MoU to seal their

Collaboration

Launch of the IPv6
Foundations Course in
French

CEQ's Monthly Update

Webinar on “Public
Persecution vs.
Constructive Criticism on

AFRINIC mailing lists”

Inclusion and diversity in
the African Internet

Ecosystem

New version of AFRINIC
Bylaws Published

Call for Nominations -
AFRINIC Board of Directors

Seat

Call for Nominations -
AFRINIC Governance
Committee

Summary of the AFRINIC
Community Consultative

webinar
Call for comments is Open
on the AFRINIC Community

Code of Conduct



https://www.afrinic.net/20210121-afrinic-whois-database-accuracy-report
https://www.afrinic.net/20210121-afrinic-whois-database-accuracy-report
https://www.afrinic.net/20210125-afrinic-whois-accuracy
https://www.afrinic.net/20210125-afrinic-whois-accuracy
https://www.afrinic.net/20210125-afrinic-whois-accuracy
https://www.afrinic.net/20210127-ceo-monthly-update-january-2021
https://www.afrinic.net/20210127-ceo-monthly-update-january-2021
https://www.afrinic.net/20210202-cfc-afrinic-mailing-lists-terms-of-use
https://www.afrinic.net/20210202-cfc-afrinic-mailing-lists-terms-of-use
https://www.afrinic.net/20210202-cfc-afrinic-mailing-lists-terms-of-use
https://www.afrinic.net/20210202-afrinic-atu-mou
https://www.afrinic.net/20210202-afrinic-atu-mou
https://www.afrinic.net/20210202-afrinic-atu-mou
https://www.afrinic.net/20210204-launching-ipv6-foundations-french-course
https://www.afrinic.net/20210204-launching-ipv6-foundations-french-course
https://www.afrinic.net/20210204-launching-ipv6-foundations-french-course
https://www.afrinic.net/20210222-ceo-monthly-update-february-2021
https://www.afrinic.net/20210224-afrinic-webinar-public-persecution-or-constructive-criticism
https://www.afrinic.net/20210224-afrinic-webinar-public-persecution-or-constructive-criticism
https://www.afrinic.net/20210224-afrinic-webinar-public-persecution-or-constructive-criticism
https://www.afrinic.net/20210224-afrinic-webinar-public-persecution-or-constructive-criticism
https://www.afrinic.net/20210202-inclusion-diversity-in-african-internet-ecosystem
https://www.afrinic.net/20210202-inclusion-diversity-in-african-internet-ecosystem
https://www.afrinic.net/20210202-inclusion-diversity-in-african-internet-ecosystem
https://www.afrinic.net/20210302-afrinic-bylaws-2020
https://www.afrinic.net/20210302-afrinic-bylaws-2020
https://www.afrinic.net/20210313-call-for-nominations-afrinic-board-of-directors
https://www.afrinic.net/20210313-call-for-nominations-afrinic-board-of-directors
https://www.afrinic.net/20210313-call-for-nominations-afrinic-board-of-directors
https://www.afrinic.net/20210313-call-for-nominations-afrinic-governance-committee
https://www.afrinic.net/20210313-call-for-nominations-afrinic-governance-committee
https://www.afrinic.net/20210313-call-for-nominations-afrinic-governance-committee
https://www.afrinic.net/20210316-summary-afrinic-community-consultative-webinar
https://www.afrinic.net/20210316-summary-afrinic-community-consultative-webinar
https://www.afrinic.net/20210316-summary-afrinic-community-consultative-webinar
https://www.afrinic.net/20210331-call-for-comments-on-afrinic-community-code-of-conduct
https://www.afrinic.net/20210331-call-for-comments-on-afrinic-community-code-of-conduct
https://www.afrinic.net/20210331-call-for-comments-on-afrinic-community-code-of-conduct

Highlights April - July

CEOQO's Monthly Update - CEOQO's Monthly Update -
April 2021 May 2021
AFRINIC participates at Governance Committee

OSIANE 2021 Communique

Understanding the Lame
DNS Delegation Policy

Electronic voting & proxy

appointment open for the
AFRINIC Board and

Governance Committee

AFRINIC Election Results
2021 Statement of the Number

Election Result for Resource Organization on
AFRINIC Chair and Allegations Against AFRINIC
Vice-Chair Call for Comments is Open for
AlIS’21 Online Meeting the AFRINIC Community Code
Concluded of Conduct

AFRINI EO add h
CEQ's Monthly Update - . CCEOa ress.es ‘ _e

freezing of AFRINIC Financial
June 2021

2-Factor Authentication for Accounts

MyAFRINIC



https://www.afrinic.net/20210416-ceo-monthly-update-april-2022
https://www.afrinic.net/20210416-ceo-monthly-update-april-2022
https://www.afrinic.net/20210428-afrinic-osiane-2021
https://www.afrinic.net/20210428-afrinic-osiane-2021
https://www.afrinic.net/20210428-lame-dns-delegation-policy
https://www.afrinic.net/20210428-lame-dns-delegation-policy
https://www.afrinic.net/20210520-ceo-monthly-update-may-2021
https://www.afrinic.net/20210520-ceo-monthly-update-may-2021
https://www.afrinic.net/20210520-govcom-communique
https://www.afrinic.net/20210520-govcom-communique
https://www.afrinic.net/20210521-evoting-proxy-appointment-open
https://www.afrinic.net/20210521-evoting-proxy-appointment-open
https://www.afrinic.net/20210521-evoting-proxy-appointment-open
https://www.afrinic.net/20210521-evoting-proxy-appointment-open
https://www.afrinic.net/20210604-afrinic-election-results-2021
https://www.afrinic.net/20210604-afrinic-election-results-2021
https://www.afrinic.net/20210610-election-result-for-afrinic-chair
https://www.afrinic.net/20210610-election-result-for-afrinic-chair
https://www.afrinic.net/20210610-election-result-for-afrinic-chair
https://www.afrinic.net/20210624-ais21-online-meeting-concluded
https://www.afrinic.net/20210624-ais21-online-meeting-concluded
https://www.afrinic.net/20210623-ceo-monthly-update-june-2021
https://www.afrinic.net/20210623-ceo-monthly-update-june-2021
https://www.afrinic.net/20210624-myafrinic-2fa
https://www.afrinic.net/20210624-myafrinic-2fa
https://www.afrinic.net/20210713-nro-statement
https://www.afrinic.net/20210713-nro-statement
https://www.afrinic.net/20210713-nro-statement
https://www.afrinic.net/20210714-call-for-comment
https://www.afrinic.net/20210714-call-for-comment
https://www.afrinic.net/20210714-call-for-comment
https://www.afrinic.net/20210727-ceo-addresses-freezing-of-afrinic-financial-accounts
https://www.afrinic.net/20210727-ceo-addresses-freezing-of-afrinic-financial-accounts
https://www.afrinic.net/20210727-ceo-addresses-freezing-of-afrinic-financial-accounts

Highlights August - December

August/September August/September

Call for Volunteers for Agqility in crisis: That one

AFRINIC Policy thing that does not have a
Development Appeal manual but needs

Committee Teamwork

Updated Terms of AFRINIC JENGA Project -
Reference for AFRINIC The Successful Pilot

Policy Development Phase
Appeal Committee CEOQO's Monthly Update -

September 2021

October/November December

Update on legal case - Filling Casual vacancy on the
Freeze Order on AFRINIC AFRINIC Board: Call for

Bank Accounts has been expressions of interest
removed Call for Volunteers on ASO
Check the latest AFRINIC AC/NRO NC

IPv6 e-course 'Masterin Call for volunteers on the
IPv6 Transition Mechanisms' AFRINIC Governance

Committee
Registration Opens for the Event Wrap: AFRINIC-34 Onlin
fifth AFRINIC IPv6 & RPKI Eulogising Serae llunaa
e-Deployathon 2021



https://www.afrinic.net/20211015-update-on-legal-case-freeze-order-on-afrinic-bank-accounts-has-been-removed
https://www.afrinic.net/20211015-update-on-legal-case-freeze-order-on-afrinic-bank-accounts-has-been-removed
https://www.afrinic.net/20211015-update-on-legal-case-freeze-order-on-afrinic-bank-accounts-has-been-removed
https://www.afrinic.net/20211015-update-on-legal-case-freeze-order-on-afrinic-bank-accounts-has-been-removed
https://www.afrinic.net/20211019-mastering-ipv6-transition-mechanisms-ecourse
https://www.afrinic.net/20211019-mastering-ipv6-transition-mechanisms-ecourse
https://www.afrinic.net/20211019-mastering-ipv6-transition-mechanisms-ecourse
https://www.afrinic.net/20211118-registration-open-for-5th-afrinic-edeployathon-2021
https://www.afrinic.net/20211118-registration-open-for-5th-afrinic-edeployathon-2021
https://www.afrinic.net/20211118-registration-open-for-5th-afrinic-edeployathon-2021
https://www.afrinic.net/20210824-call-for-volunteers
https://www.afrinic.net/20210824-call-for-volunteers
https://www.afrinic.net/20210824-call-for-volunteers
https://www.afrinic.net/20210824-call-for-volunteers
https://www.afrinic.net/20210824-updated-terms-of-reference
https://www.afrinic.net/20210824-updated-terms-of-reference
https://www.afrinic.net/20210824-updated-terms-of-reference
https://www.afrinic.net/20210824-updated-terms-of-reference
https://www.afrinic.net/20210825-agility-in-crisis
https://www.afrinic.net/20210825-agility-in-crisis
https://www.afrinic.net/20210825-agility-in-crisis
https://www.afrinic.net/20210825-agility-in-crisis
https://www.afrinic.net/20210830-afrinic-jenga-project-pilot-phase
https://www.afrinic.net/20210830-afrinic-jenga-project-pilot-phase
https://www.afrinic.net/20210830-afrinic-jenga-project-pilot-phase
https://www.afrinic.net/20210914-ceo-monthly-update-september-2021
https://www.afrinic.net/20210914-ceo-monthly-update-september-2021
https://www.afrinic.net/20211203-casual-vacancy-on-afrinic-board
https://www.afrinic.net/20211203-casual-vacancy-on-afrinic-board
https://www.afrinic.net/20211203-casual-vacancy-on-afrinic-board
https://www.afrinic.net/20211203-call-for-volunteers-on-the-aso-ac-nro-nc
https://www.afrinic.net/20211203-call-for-volunteers-on-the-aso-ac-nro-nc
https://www.afrinic.net/20211203-call-for-volunteers-on-afrinic-governance-committee
https://www.afrinic.net/20211203-call-for-volunteers-on-afrinic-governance-committee
https://www.afrinic.net/20211203-call-for-volunteers-on-afrinic-governance-committee
https://www.afrinic.net/20211208-afrinic34-wrap
https://www.afrinic.net/20211228-eulogising-serge-ilunga

About

The African Network Information Centre (AFRINIC) is the Regional Internet
Registry (RIR) for Africa. It is responsible for the distribution and
management of Internet number resources (IPv4 and IPv6 addresses and
Autonomous System Numbers — ASNs) for the African and Indian Ocean
region. It was founded in 2004 and is a non-governmental, not-for-profit,
membership-based organisation headquartered in Mauritius. The policies
governing the distribution of Internet number resources by AFRINIC are
defined by the AFRINIC community using a bottom-up, community-driven
policy development process (PDP). The Board of Directors then ratifies these
policies. AFRINIC also plays a leading role in education and capacity
building as well as in IP infrastructure development and reinforcement
throughout the region.

Core Functions

AFRINIC’s core function is to assign and allocate Internet number
resources (IPv4, IPv6 and ASNs) to its members and to provide
related services, including RPKI and the management of the
Reverse DNS (rDNS) zones for the Internet number resources it
allocates and assigns.

In addition to its core function, AFRINIC

° Supports the community-based process for developing
number resource policies.

. Provides training and education services to its members,
governments and the wider community to support capacity
building and infrastructure development throughout the
region.

° Collaborates with regional and international organisations on
Internet-related matters to ensure the needs of the region are
taken into account.

. Promotes and supports an open, stable, secure and resilient
Internet through technologies and projects including RPKI,
DNSSEC, local Internet Exchange Point (IXP) set up and
deployment of root server copies throughout Africa.

° Manages the small Grants and Awards programme, FIRE
Africa, to fund and mentor entrepreneurial Internet-related
projects in Africa.


https://www.afrinic.net/policy

Members

AFRINIC is a membership organisation and
provides services to its members, mostly Internet
Service Providers (ISPs), governments,
educational institutions and end-users, within its
geographical service region. At year-end 2020,
AFRINIC had 1989 active members. More details
about membership can be found in the
Membership section.

Service
Region

5th
RIR

95

Economies
In Africa and Indian
Ocean

54

Dedicated
staff



Core Values

e Community Driven

e Excellence
e Integrity

e Passion




VISION A secure and accessible Internet for sustainable digital growth in Africa

To serve the African Internet community by delivering efficient services
MISSION - . .
in a global multi-stakeholder environment
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Corporate Governance

AFRINIC’s activities are overseen by a Board of Directors
(BoD) and managed by an appointed Chief Executive
Officer, who oversees the staff and daily operations. The
BoD is supported by the Council of Elders, which performs
an advisory function. AFRINIC is governed by a set of
Bylaws developed and approved by the community.

Compliance Statement

In accordance with its mission statement, AFRINIC is
committed to applying the principles of good corporate
governance in its day-to-day operations




Board of Directors

The Board of Directors (BoD) is elected by
AFRINIC members on a regional and
non-regional representation basis as defined
by Article 13 of the Bylaws. Once appointed
to the BoD, each director represents and
works for the entire region and not just for the
sub-region seat they were elected into.
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http://afrinic.net/en/about-us/bylaws?start=12
http://afrinic.net/en/about-us/bylaws

Bylaws

AFRINIC is governed by a set of Bylaws that are developed and adopted by the AFRINIC

membership.

The Board of Directors (BoD) has all the powers
for directing and supervising the business and
affairs of the company, in line with Article 15 of
the bylaws.

The BoD responsibilities are further outlined
as follows:

Determine the guidelines for the allocation of
address space for Members.

Consider broad Internet policy issues in order
to ensure that the policies and strategies of
the company fully respond to the changing
Internet environment.

Determine a financial budget for the activities
of the Company for a given period.

Establish a ceiling for expenditures for a
given period and from time to time to vary
such ceiling as they deem fit.

Fill any casual vacancy in the office of the
auditor of the Company.

Provide any general directives to the Chief
Executive Officer regarding the staffing of
the Company.

Determine the conditions of employment of
the employees of the Company who are
employed at an Executive level

Reduce or waive fees payable by any
person to the Company, or to amend in
any manner whatsoever the conditions
relating to the payment thereof

Appoint or remove the secretary of the
Company and to determine the
remuneration payable to such secretary;
and

Appoint such committees for such reasons
and with such terms of reference as they
shall consider necessary or desirable.




Conflict of Interest

All members of the Board of Directors are expected to be enlightened
individuals from the region served by AFRINIC, who, by their wisdom
and knowledge of Internet Technology and business, endeavour to
advance the interests of the community and the Internet Infrastructure in
the region. A Board Director should bring to the knowledge of the Board
any degree of conflict that may arise in the course of his or her functions
and must resolve such conflict according to their own judgment, always
acting in the best interest of the organisation.

Board Meetings and Composition

The AFRINIC Board meets regularly. A Calendar of Board
meeting for the upcoming year is approved at the end of
each preceding year. The Board met 23 times during the
period under review.

2021 Board Resolutions

During 2021, 75 resolutions were discussed and resolved.
A detailed overview of these resolutions can be found



https://www.afrinic.net/board/meeting/2021

Board Composition

Seat Number

Seat 1

Seat 2

Seat 3

Seat 4

Name

Prof Habib Youssef
Emmanuel Adewale Adedokun
Subramanian Moonesamy
Serge llunga*

Vika Mpisane

Mark Elkins**

Silvio Almada

Dr Abdalla Omari

Oluwaseun Ojedeji

Benjamin Eshun

Eddy Mabano Kayihura - Appointed CEO of AFRINIC

Country

Tunisia

Nigeria

Mauritius

DRC Congo

South Africa

South Africa

Angola

Kenya

Nigeria

Ghana

Region

Northern Africa

Western Africa

Indian Ocean

Central Africa

Southern Africa

Southern Africa*****

Southern Africa*****

Eastern Africa

Non-Regional Africa

Non-Regional Africa

From

20 July 2019

20 June 2019

18 September 2020

18 September 2020

20 June 2021

4 June 2021

27 December 2021

18 September 2020

20 June 2019

18 September 2020

To

30 June 2022

30 June 2022

30 June 2023

23 December 2021**

4 June 2021

6 July 2021

June 2022 *

30 June 2023

June 2022

1 June 2023

*Note 1 : Late Mr Serge Kabwika llunga passed
away on the 23 December 2021.

**Note 2: The Seat 4 was vacant as from 23
December 2021.

***Note 3. Mr Mark Elkins resigned on 26 July 2021. The
Seat remained vacant till 27 December 2021.

****Note 4: Mr Silvio Cabral was appointed to Seat 5 on 27
December 2021.

*****Seat 5- Southern Africa was subject for election under
the Annual General Members Meeting [AGMM2021] on the
4 June 2021. Mr Mark Elkins was elected in replacement
of Mr Vika Mpisane




Attendance

REGION Board members Jan Feb Mar Mar Apr May May Jun  Jul Aug  Aug Aug  Sep Oct Oct Nov Nov Nov Dec Dec

Date

EAST Abdalla Omari
- [ HAHEEE - SN
Dr Adewale

WEST Adedokun S e A v v VoA v NN A

x V
CENTRAL Serge llunga R
NORTH Prof Habib Youssef R
Subramanian
INDIAN OCEAN Moonesamy
Oluwaseun Ojedeiji

NON-GEO Benjamin Eshun

CEO Eddy Kayihura

Black represents Not a Board Director during the particular period and/or Board Seat




Board Committees

Committees are set up by the Chair of the Board and assist the Board of
Directors in the course of its work as per Article 15.3 of the Bylaws. The
Board Committees facilitate the discharge of the Board's responsibilities
and provide in-depth focus on specific areas. The Committees report to
the Board through their respective chairman and each committee has
Terms of Reference (ToR) which the Board reviews at least once a year.
The committees are re-formed as and when a new Board is elected and
are also constituted with a defined lifetime. Ad-hoc committees are
created as and when necessary to support short-term projects or activities.

The following Committees were active in 2021:



http://afrinic.net/en/about-us/bylaws?start=14
http://afrinic.net/en/about-us/bylaws

The Audit Committee Finance Committee

The Audit committee assists the BoD in discharging its The Finance Committee monitors AFRINIC's financial
oversight responsibilities, and oversees the financial planning, management and reporting matters. It also ensures
reporting process to ensure the balance, transparency and the fiscal stability and long-term economic health of the
integrity of published financial information. The Audit company, as well as making recommendations and delivering
Committee also reviews the effectiveness of AFRINIC's reports to the Board of Directors.

internal financial control and risk management system, See https://www.afrinic.net/board/committ ees#finance for
internal auditing and control, informational systems and IT more details.

governance.

The Audit Committee Charter can be seen at:
https://www.afrinic.net/board/committees#audit

Committee members: Committee members:

Benjamin Eshun [January — December]

Serge llunga (January - December) Dr Abdalla Omari [January-December]
Oluwaseun Ojedeji (January - June) Vika Mpisane [January — June]

Mark Elkins (June - July) Dr Adewale Adedokun (June - December]
Prof. Habib Youssef (August - December) Eddy Kayihura (CEO, January - December)



https://www.afrinic.net/board/committees#audit
https://www.afrinic.net/board/committees#finance
https://www.afrinic.net/board/committees#finance

Governance Committee

Remuneration Committee

The Governance Committee’s role is to advise the AFRINIC
The Remuneration Committee is responsible for Board, AFRINIC Membership, and the community, on matters of
recommendations with regard to determining, agreeing governance.The Composition of the Governance Committee for
and developing the company's general policy on the year 2021 was as follows:
executive and senior management remuneration,
performance related elements, including short term
bonuses and long term incentives.

Members Country/Sub-region Tenure Duration

Ali Hussein Kenya, Eastern Africa 3 years Jan 2021 - Dec 2023

Committee members:

Laurent Ntumba
Vika Mpisane - (January - June) Kayemba

3 years

DRC, Western Africa Jan 2020 - Dec 2022

Dr Adewale Adedokun [January — June]

Dr Alioune
Serge llunga (January- June) Badara Traore

Mark Elkins - (June-July)
Daniel Nanghaka Uganda, Eastern 2 years

Benjamin Eshun (August- December) Africa

3 years

DRC, Western Africa Jan 2019 - Dec 2021

Jan 2020 - Dec 2021

Prof. Habib Youssef (January - December)
Rwanda, Eastern

Africa

Oluwaseun Ojedeji (January - December) Eddy Lareine Jan 2019 - Dec 2020

Eddy Kayihura (CEO, January - December)

S}Z\éveajiseun Non-Geographical Jan 2021 - Dec 2021

Ashok Legal Advisor
Radhakissoon




During the election in June 2021, Mr Simon Balthasar was
elected by the AFRINIC Membership to the Governance
Committee for a three-year term, starting January 2022 to
December 2024.

The Governance Committee published its Guidelines in
November 2017

Find out more about the Governance Committee, the
Governance Committee members and the ToR.

Reform Committee

The Reform Committee was set up in September 2019 to
help address some of the issues the organisation is facing on
matters of governance, accountability and transparency. The
Committee is composed of the following members:

Committee members:

Adiel Akplogan
Alan Barrett
Habib Youssef
Viv Padayatchy
Dr Alioune Traore

Paul Wilson

Recall Committee

On 16 November 2020 the Board of Directors received
a request to recall the PDWG Co-Chairs. In this
context, the Board constituted an Recall Committee
pursuant to section 3.5(3) of its Consolidated Policy
Manual, to investigate the circumstances of the
justification for the recall request and determine the
outcome thereof.

Committee members:

Kenny Yip Tong

Dr Ousmane Ly

Dr Christian Bope
Craig Ng (Observer)



https://afrinic.net/en/about/governance-committee/governance-committee-documents/2245-governance-committe-guidelines
http://www.afrinic.net/about/governance-committee

Nomination Committee

According to Section 9 of AFRINIC Bylaws, a Nomination
Committee is appointed by the Board and works to ensure
that appropriate candidates are nominated for open Board
seats and that all elections are conducted according to
current procedures. The four members of this committee
are appointed by the Board. One member is from the
Board while three others are selected from the
community.

Committee members:

Fabian Arbogast Jr
Caleb O Ogundele
Raymond Mamattah

Dr Abdalla Omari [Board Representative]

The Council of Elders

Article 16 of the bylaws enables the BoD to appoint up to
six former AFRINIC BoD chairpersons to the AFRINIC
Council of Elders. Those who are eligible for membership
to the Council of Elders should have served for at least
one full term as the Chair of the AFRINIC BoD. The
Council of Elders performs an advisory role.

The Council of Elders is now composed as
follows:

Dr. Viv Padayatchy
Mr Pierre Dandjinou
Mrs Maimouna Diop
Dr Nii Quaynor

Dr Christian D. Bope



https://www.afrinic.net/bylaws#coe

PDWG Appeal Committee

AFRINIC has a Policy Development Appeal Committee
as per Section 3.5 of the AFRINIC Policy Development
Policy.

The AFRINIC Policy Development Appeal Committee, or
the Appeal Committee, is appointed by the AFRINIC
Board, intended to adjudicate on appeals in terms of the
Conflict Resolution section of the AFRINIC Policy
Development Process (PDP). Any such appeal will
involve a disagreement regarding the actions taken by
the Chair(s) of the Policy Development Working Group
(PDWG).

Further information on the Appeal Committee and its
charter is available at
https://www.afrinic.net/policy/appeal-committee#tor

Committee members:

Mrs Wafa Dahmani
Mr Lucky Masilela

Mr Ali Hussein

Dr Sami Salih

Dr Janvier Ngnoulaye

Update on Court Cases

For the period January 2021 to December 2021

Number of cases involving AFRINIC:31
Number of cases against AFRINIC: 29
Number of cases initiated by AFRINIC: 2
Number of completed cases: 18
Number of ongoing cases:13

Note:

Out of the 29 cases initiated against AFRINIC, 24
of these have been initiated by Cloud Innovation
Ltd. The others are made up as follows - 3 cases
have been initiated by LogicWeb Inc, 1 by City of
Cape Town and 1 by Africa on Cloud (PTY) Ltd;
2 of the 24 aforementioned cases have been
initiated by Cloud Innovation Ltd in Seychelles
whereas the others have been entered in
Mauritius;



https://www.afrinic.net/policy/appeal-committee#tor

Update on Court Cases

The 2 cases initiated by AFRINIC were against
Cloud Innovation Ltd in order to have access to
its bank accounts;

Of all the pending cases, there are 2 cases from
Cloud Innovation - one with a claim for financial
compensation in the sum of USD 1.8 Billion and
another claim for defamation in the sum of USD
80 Million;

The petition from Africa on Cloud (PTY) Ltd is
one seeking the winding up of AFRINIC.

In addition to the above, the case Afri Holdings
Ltd & Ors vs Afrinic (2020) is still ongoing. The
City of Cape Town has now been granted leave
to intervene in the said matter.

The cases initiated by Afri Holdings Ltd & Ors
(2020) and LogicWeb Inc (2021) are the result of
the reclamation of IP number resources by
AFRINIC following its investigation in the
misappropriation of IP number resources.

The police investigation [OB: 1335/2019]
regarding the misappropriation of IP number
resources is still ongoing.

In September 2021, the Competition
Commission of Mauritius (CCM) initiated an
inquiry against AFRINIC following an anonymous
complaint pertaining to alleged anti-competitive
conduct on the part of AFRINIC with respect to
the transfer of resources. AFRINIC collaborated
with the CCM and the latter found no such
restrictive business practice on the part of
AFRINIC within the meaning of the Competition
Act 2007. Consequently, the inquiry has been
closed with no further action.

For more information on the above, see
https://afrinic.net/court-cases



https://afrinic.net/court-cases

Annual General Members Meeting (AGMM)

The AGMM is held once a year, usually during an AFRINIC Open
Policy Meeting. The AGMMs enable the membership to meet with
the BoD, Council of Elders and CEO to discuss operational,
financial and corporate governance issues. Elections for BoD
seats and voting on proposed special resolutions may also take
place during the AGMMs. In 2021, the AGMM was held virtually on
4 June 2021 due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

The minutes, video recording and presentation materials from this
meeting are available on the AFRINIC website.



https://www.afrinic.net/agmm/2021
https://www.afrinic.net/en/about/agmm/archive

Membership Overview

AFRINIC members are mostly Internet Service Providers
(ISPs), governments, educational institutions and
end-users located within its service region. By the end of
2021, AFRINIC had 1,989 active members. Most members
receive Internet number resources (IPv4, IPv6 and ASNs)
from AFRINIC and then distribute them to their customers
or use their allocations and assignments within their own
networks.



Members Benefits of Membership

There are two types of membership:
Obtaining IPv4 and IPv6 address space and

e Resource Members: Local Internet Registries (LIRs) Autonomous System Numbers (ASNs).
or End Users (EUs). These are organisations that . _
allocate the Internet number resources they receive Getting reverse DNS and RPKI for their resources.

to their own customers or those who use the

resources in their own infrastructure. Taking advantage of priority places on AFRINIC’s

FREE hands-on IPv6 and Internet Number Resource

M t (INRM) Training C .
Associate Members. These are organisations or anagement ( ) Training Courses

individuals who do not use Internet Number Resources Using an IPv6 test-bed to test their IPv6

but have a substantial interest in the management of deployments.

Internet Number resources in Africa.
Attending the Annual General Members’ Meetings
(AGMM) either in person or remotely and
participating in elections for Board and
Governance Committee positions.

F Getting preferential access to various AFRINIC
ees initiatives and activities.

Annual membership fees are calculated based on the
amount of Internet number resources an organisation Find out more about how you can become a member at:
holds. https://www.afrinic.net/membership



https://www.afrinic.net/membership
https://www.afrinic.net/membership/cost

Total Members per year
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Membership Statistics
AFRINIC welcomed 153 new members in 2021.
New Members per Year (2006 — 2021)

AFRINIC Membership Growth since 2006

Up to 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

2015

2017

2018

2019
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New Members 2021 by Membership Category

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

AFRINIC Members By Category in 2021

Associate Member: o.z%w

EU: 29.4%

~ UR: 70.4%

AFRINIC Members by Membership Category from 2016 to 2021

1554

1667

1760

1836

LR

M eu

M Associate Memb
Total Members
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The team is also involved in:

Member Services (MS)

e Conducting workshops on INRM training, IRR and
The Member Services team manages the day to day of RPKI,
AFRINIC ‘s core registry functions as well as different Playing a key role in Resource Policy Implementation
service-oriented activities and projects. Member

Services core functions and main activities include: o Policy impact assessment

o Specification drafting

e Managing the resource inventory
o Product testing

Maintain the accuracy of the resource registrations on . . .
the AFRINIC whois database. o Implementation experience reviews

. o Member support documentation on the website
Evaluation of resource requests as per existing

policies, approve and issue resources Conducting MS outreaches

Enforce resource policies compliance Reporting

Delivery of and support for registry related services

Project leadership . .
Requests, Queries and Tickets

The department responded to an average of 79.12% of
tickets logged within SLC within 48 working hours
throughout the year.

Real-time ticket statistics can be found at:
https://www.afrinic.net/stats/requests



https://www.afrinic.net/stats/requests

Total ipv4 allocations

IPv4, IPv6 and ASNs

IPv4 distribution

A total of 282,624 IPv4 addresses were issued in AFRINIC's service region in 2021.
Since its inception, AFRINIC has distributed 118,329,752 IPv4 addresses.

Total Cumulative IPv4 Addresses Allocated in the AFRINIC service region: 2006-2021

IPv4 (/32) Distribution Trend since 2006

o 117,098,752 118,047,128 118,329,752
112,524,288
106,428,672
100M 98,658,560
86,880,768
£l 70,198,784
58,276,352
51,548,928
20M 43,995,136
35,603,968
27,324,672
25M 19,588,608 211459200
14,132,224
oM
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IPv4 Pool Availability as of December 2021

The available inventory in /8s is depicted in the table below. As can be
observed, the IPv4 pool is gradually decreasing.

Total available IPv4 /8s

IPv4 Exhaustion Trend since 2012

3.77
3.38

2.79

.82

.76

0.40
0.16 0.1 0.10

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

8
9
10

Available resources in the AFRINIC

A
"
L ANTD

./
s On

Prefix Size
n2
13
n7
/18
19
120
121
122
123

124

Total Free
1

1

3
4

inventory at end of 2021:
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Total IPv6 /32s

IPv6 distribution

A total of 140 IPv6 prefixes were distributed in AFRINIC's service region
Since 2004, AFRINIC has distributed 9,832 /32s to its membership.

Total Cumulative IPv6 Addresses Allocated in the AFRINIC service region
IPv6 (/32s) Distribution Trend since 2006

12.5k
10k
8,998
7.5k
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Total ASNs

ASN Distributed

A total of 226 ASNs were issued during the year.
Since inception, AFRINIC has issued a total of 2,447 ASNs.

Total Cumulative ASN Distribution in the AFRINIC service region

AS Numbers Distribution Trend since 2006
3000

2500 2,447
2,234

2,040
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1,752
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1,263

1,108
973
1000 %)
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553

500 350 436

284
182



Internet Routing Registry

There was a steady increase in the number of route objects
on the AFRINIC IRR during 2021. The Member Services
department encourages members to use the AFRINIC IRR.
In 2021, 72.3% of AFRINIC Resources Members were using
the AFRINIC IRR.

IP Resource Transfer

22 transfers were completed during 2021, including mergers
and acquisitions.

Legacy resources

IPv4 resources that have legacy status: 7,646,976 /32s.




Community and Policy Development

AFRINIC provides several platforms for the discussions of Internet
number resource management policies and relevant
Internet-related topics. Such activities are conducted through
workshops, conferences and business events that include the
AFRINIC public policy meetings. As part of its secretariat role,
AFRINIC facilitates the Policy Development Process for the
AFRINIC community to ensure that the unique needs of the region
are catered for.

The AFRINIC Community

AFRINIC Meetings

AFRINIC holds two open public policy meetings every year in
various locations throughout its service region. The meetings
provide an opportunity for local, regional and global
Internet-related individuals and organisations to gather to discuss
and develop the policies governing Internet number resource
distribution in the African region and beyond, to share technical
knowledge and best practices, and to attend relevant courses,
workshops and tutorials. Due to the pandemic situation worldwide
AFRINIC had to rethink its strategy for conducting such meetings.




Africa Internet Summit 2021 (AlS'21)

The Africa Internet Summit (AIS) is an annual, regional, multi-stakeholder ICT conference
co-organised by AFRINIC and the African Network Operators' Group. It is the pinnacle educational
and business ICT event in Africa enabling key players in the Internet industry to come together to
interact with the global Internet community.

The event took place online from 31 May to 4 June 2021 and was attended by 378 delegates
from 55 countries.

Read more on AlIS'21 Online on our blog here.
AFRINIC-34 Online Meeting
The AFRINIC-34 Online Meeting took place online, from 14-18 November 2021.

226 delegates from 48 countries took part in policy developmen
sessions. The meeting was organised by AFRINIC on the Meg

Read more on AFRINIC-34 on our blog here.


https://www.afrinic.net/20210624-ais21-online-meeting-concluded
https://www.afrinic.net/20211208-afrinic34-wrap

Keeping the Community Informed

AFRINIC Blog and News

AFRINIC publishes relevant and interesting articles, news, research
and statistics. This provides not only information but also facilitates
community discussions and engagements on Internet-related topics in
Africa and beyond. 63 blog and news posts were published on the
AFRINIC website.

A high level of activity was experienced in regard to policy
discussions in 2021 and a total of 1877 mailing list posts were
received

Two Public Policy Meetings was held in 2021 in online format. During
the meeting,s the following policy proposals were discussed, with the
current status of each respective proposal as indicated below:

Mailing Lists

AFRINIC has several mailing lists through which it informs the
community on AFRINIC related issues on relevant topics. Find out
more about AFRINIC's mailing lists, most of which are open to all,
at https://www.afrinic.net/email

Outages and Incidents

There was one partial outage reported in 2021, in our datacenter in
Parkland, Johannesburg. AFRINIC ensures that the community is
kept up to date on any incidents and outages through its dedicated
webpage. The community can also make sure they are informed by
following the @AFRINIC_IT twitter feed, which updates the
community in real-time of any planned or unscheduled
maintenance.



https://www.afrinic.net/news
https://www.afrinic.net/email
http://status.afrinic.net/
https://confluence.afrinic.net/www.twitter.com/afrinic_it

Policy Development

Policies that govern how AFRINIC manages the distribution of IPv4, IPv6, ASNs
and related resources are developed by the community through the Policy
Development Working Group - PDWG in a transparent, open and bottom-up
policy development process. Most policy development activity happens through
the rod@afrinic.net mailing list and at the AFRINIC public policy meetings that
are organised at least once a year. During these meetings, policy proposals go
through the consensus-building process. Policy proposals under discussion are
listed on the policy web page .

Abdulkarim Oleyede and Moses Serugo served as PDWG co-chairs for the
period 1 January 2021 until 4 February 2021, when the Recall Committee, after
considering the recall petition against both PDWG Chairs ,determined that a
recall of both the co-Chairs is justifiable in the circumstances, and that both the
co-Chairs be recalled with immediate effect. The PDWG proposed a mechanism
to select and appoint new Co-Chairs pursuant with Section 3.3 of the
Consolidated Policy Manual. On 10 April 2021,, Vincent Ngundi from Kenya
and Darwin Da Costa from Angola were selected via consensus by the Policy
Development Working Group tp serve and steer the PDWG community as
co-chairs. Mr Vincent Ngundi serves term ending on or about June 2023, whilst
Mr Da Costa’s term ends on or about June 2022.

A high level of activity was experienced in regard to policy discussions in 2021
and a total of 1877 mailing list posts were received Two Public Policy Meetings
was held in 2021 in online format. During the meetings, the following policy
proposals were discussed,

PRINCIPLES OF PDP

AFRINIC’s Policy Development Process is
consensus-based and is:

Open

Anyone interested can
get involved, propose
and discuss policies. No
accreditation is needed.
It is inclusive, accessible
and participatory.

Bottom-up Transparent
The Internet Community /
drives policy Meeting notes, presentations and

discussions are publicly
accessible. Everything is
documented and published.

\_/

development i.e.
proposes, discusses and
approves policy.
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RPKI ROAs for Unallocated and Unassigned AFRINIC
Address space - AFPUB-2019-GEN-006-DRAFT03
Proposed: 19 April 2021

The proposal instructs AFRINIC to create ROAs for all unallocated and
unassigned address space under its control. This will enable networks
performing RPKI-based BGP Origin Validation to easily reject all the
bogon announcements covering resources managed by AFRINIC.

Presented at: AFRINIC-31 (AFPUB-2019-GEN-006-DRAFT01 in December 2019),
AFRINIC-32 (AFPUB-2019-GEN-006-DRAFT02) in September 2020, AFRINIC-33
(June 2021)

Status at end of 2021: Consensus

Abuse Contact Policy Update - AFPUB-2018-GEN-001-DRAFT07
Proposed: 17 May 2021

The proposal introduces a mandatory “abuse-c” attribute for specifying
abuse email address(es) for a given directly issued resource. it further
introduces a mechanism for AFRINIC to validate the given abuse email
address, and punitive measures (such as blocking of my.afrinic.net
access, including access to voting) if contacts remain invalid.

Presented at: AFRINIC-29 (November 2018), AFRINIC-30 (June 2019), AFRINIC-31
(December 2019), AFRINIC-33 (June 2021)

Status at end of 2021: Last Call

PDP Working Group (WG) Guidelines and Procedures -
AFPUB-2020-GEN-002-DRAFT04
Proposed: 10 Nov 2021

The proposal addresses the problems by defining clear and
explicit Working Group guidelines and procedures.

Presented at: AFRINIC-32 (AFPUB-2020-GEN-002-DRAFT02)
in September 2020), AFRINIC-34(Nov 2021)

Status at end of 2021: Under discussion

IPv4 Inter-RIR Resource Transfers (Comprehensive
Scope) - AFPUB-2019-v4-002-DRAFT07
Proposed: 9 November 2021

The proposal allows establishing the mechanism to allow inter-RIR and
intra-RIR transfers of legacy and non-legacy IPv4 resources to/from other
regions.

Presented at: AFRINIC-30 (June 2019), AFRINIC-31 (AFPUB-2019-v4-002-DRAFT03
in December 2019), AFRINIC-32 (September 2020), AFRINIC-34(Nov 2021)

Status at end of 2021: Under Discussion




Publication of Information
AFPUB-2021-GEN-001-DRAFT02

Proposed: 9 November 2021

The proposal looks for the publication of information about
resource request justifications after a community agreed period of
time (2 years) unless there is a valid demonstration of the need to
extend the confidentiality period.

Presented at: AFRINIC-34 (November 2021)
Status at end of 2021: Under discussion

Update of PDP AFPUB-2021-GEN-002-DRAFT02
Proposed: 9 November 2021

The proposal aims at amending some areas of the AFRINIC Policy
Development Process, notably :-

-by defining rough consensus,enabling AFRINIC to verify the identity of a
person forming part of the PDWG if the need arises ,hold more than 2 PPMs
in one year, clarifies the purpose of the Last Call, modifies the timelines and
consensus determination of a policy proposal version. It also mentions a new
clause in regard to any policies that the Board may define in exceptional
emergency situations

Presented at: AFRINIC-34 (November 2021)
Status at end of 2021: Under discussion

Policy Compliance Dashboard -AFPUB-2021-GEN-002-DRAFTO02
Proposed: 9 November 2021

This proposal provides the framework for a “Policy Compliance
Dashboard”, to be developed by AFRINIC, and incorporated in
MyAFRINIC (and future members communications platforms).

Presented at: AFRINIC-34 (November 2021)
Status at end of 2021: Last Call

AFRINIC Number Resources Transfer Policy -
AFPUB-2020-GEN-006-DRAFT02
Proposed: 8 October 2021

The policy defines a set of rules to allow inter-RIR and intra-RIR transfer of

IPv4 addresses and ASNs, by specifying what categories of resources are
eligible for transfer, the location of parties (sources and recipients) and the
conditions to be met. The policy segregates resources in different categories
and defines which transfer rules apply to each category. Only Legacy
resources and resources transferred in from other regions will be transferable
out of the AFRINIC service region.

Presented at: AFRINIC-34 (November 2021)

Status at end of 2021: Last Call (AFPUB-2020-GEN-006-DRAFT03)




. Policy Compliance Dashboard - AFPUB-2020-GEN-001-DRAFTO01
Resource Transfer Policy - AFPUB-2019-V4-003-DRAFT02 Proposed: 17 February 2020

Proposed: 13 August 2020
) This proposal provides the framework for a “Policy Compliance Dashboard”,
The proposal provides for Inter-RIR (and Intra-RIR) transfer of IPv4 and ASN to be developed by AFRINIC, and incorporated in MyAFRINIC (and future

resources. o
members communications platforms).

Presented at: AFRINIC-31 (AFPUB-2019-V4-003-DRAFT01 in December 2019),
AFRINIC-32 (September 2020) Presented at: AFRINIC-32 (September 2020)

Status at end of 2020: Under discussion
Status at end of 2021: Under Discussion

Co chair Recall AFPUB-2020-GEN-007-DRAFTO01
Proposed: 24 November 2020

The proposal aims at defining clear and explicit procedures and guidelines for
co-chair recall

Simple PDP Update for the New 'Normal’ -
AFPUB-2020-GEN-003-DRAFTO01
Proposed: 7 August 2020

) This simple proposal seeks to eliminate the requirement that states that
Status at end of 2021: Expired consensus must only be reached at the PPM, adapt the relevant timings, and
at the same time, clarifies the definition of “consensus” and “last call”.

Presented at: AFRINIC-32 (September 2020)
Status at end of 2021 Expired




General Abuse Contact - AFPUB-2020-GEN-005-DRAFTO1
Proposed: 3 October 2020

The proposal removes entirely section 8.X. because it mostly gives AFRINIC a
control role that is out of its scope.

The proposal aims to include abuse-c as part of whois registration by adding it
under section 7.5.1 "Registering contact persons" which already covers the other
mandatory contact - admin-c or tech-c.

Presented at: AFRINIC-33 (June 2021)
Status at end of 2021: Expired

Chairs Election Process - AFPUB-2019-GEN-007-DRAFT02
Proposed: 19 August 2020

The proposal provides a complete process for the PDWG chairs candidate
requirements, in order to be integrated in the AFRINIC Policy Development
Process(PDP)

Presented at: AFRINIC-31 (AFPUB-2019-GEN-007-DRAFT01 in December
2019), AFRINIC-32 (September 2020)
Status at end of 2021: Expired
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Implemented Policies

AFRINIC-34 ONLINE

All implemented policies appear in the Consolidated Policy
Manual: https://www.afrinic.net/policy/manual
No policies were implemented in 2021.

The minutes for the two Public Policy Meetings held in
2021 an be found at the following URLSs:

AFRINIC-33
-https://www.afrinic.net/policy/development-working
-group/ppm-afrinic-33

AFRINIC-34 -
https://www.afrinic.net/policy/development-working-
group/ppm-afrinic-34



https://www.afrinic.net/policy/manual

Global Policy Development / NRO-NC Update

The 2021 representatives from the AFRINIC region to the NRO-NC are:

° Mike Silber (South Africa)— January 2020 to December 2022
° Saul Stein (South Africa) - January 2021 to December 2023
° Wafa Dahmani (Tunisia) - January 2022 to December 2022.

No global policy proposals were received or approved during 2021.




Stakeholders Engagement

The department’s activities are geared towards the African
Internet ecosystem stakeholders including African
governments, ICT regional and International organisation,
Internet development organisations, Education and
Research Center, the AFRINIC community, among
others.

The COVID-19 pandemic has forced us to conduct most
of the initiatives virtually..

Our strategy towards towards Stakeholders was built on
mapping their needs and challenges to the AFRINIC
initiatives and services. We engaged in fruitful cooperation
with each of them to accelerate the implementation and
usage of Internet technologies on the continent.
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In 2021, AFRINIC entered into a partnership and collaboration with
the African Telecommunications Union (ATU), the University of Cape
Town (UCT), the Ministry of the Digital Economy, Posts and Digital
Transformation of Burkina Faso (MENPTD), Facebook, the Ministry
of Digital Economy of Benin and ISOC-Africa. They amount for six (6)
new MoUs and agreement for a total amount of 9 projects, to guide
the implementation of Internet development activities.

Jenga Meetings

AFRINIC launched the Jenga project meaning "Building Up" in
Swahili in our effort to leverage the services offered to AFRINIC
Members and Stakeholders. Jenga consists in conducting both virtual
and on-site on-site meetings with the AFRINIC members, ICT
regulators, Governments, and AFRINIC Community members to
discuss challenges and foster avenues of sustainable collaboration.

In August, we conducted roundtable meetings with our members in 55
economies in the AFRINIC service region. Out of the 951 registrations,
a total of 393 attendees representing members from 55 economies
attended the 27 Zoom Meetings.

In October 2021, AFRINIC staff conducted another edition of a
virtual AFRINIC Resource Members Roundtable. We held 15
meetings, attended by roughly 360 members.

The 22nd and 23rd AFRINIC Government Working Group
(AfGWG) meeting were held virtually on 27 May 2021 and 12
August 2021. This working group meetings was attended by 80
high-level and knowledgeable delegates from 27 African
economies and governments as well as from Regional

Telecommunication organisations. These meetings paved a new
momentum for building sustainable collaboration between
Governments, Internet Technology based organisations, and
companies in Africa towards safeguarding the steady growth of
the government e-services while improving data protection on
government Internet networks




We boosted our engagements with regional and international organisation
such as the Commonwealth Telecommunication Organisation, African
Telecommunications Union (ATU), Global Forum on Cyber
Expertise (GFCE) among other to explore opportunities for cooperation
within the AFRINIC’s services region.

Community Engagements

In 2021, we conducted various activities to engage with the
AFRINIC community and leverage relationships between
AFRINIC and its community constituencies. Despite not
having been able to conduct on-site and physical meetings,
we kept interacting with our community virtually.

AFRINIC and its partners successfully conducted AlS 21 online
and AFRINIC-34 online respectively.. Both meetings held
exclusively online went according to plan, and the Board
Community Engagement, Annual General Members Meeting
(AGMM), and elections marked the final act of the event.

In our continuous effort to improve our interactions with the
AFRINIC community and ensure engagement from the
outset, we initiated an impactful series of 8 French and
English webinars on AFRINIC's Ecosystem and
Governance structure.

We also were actively involved in the organisation of 12
Internet Governance Forums in each region in Africa. Our
participation took different forms such as presentation,
Keynote, Panelist, Sponsor, and Brand promotion.

Our community members gathered to organise a fundraising to support
AFRINIC following the freezing of AFRINIC’s bank accounts..This
initiative has helped with the continuity of our commitment to serving
the African Internet community during this challenging situation. We
have received donations from several individuals and organisations,
and our heartfelt appreciation to all them.

Sponsorships

By the end of 2021, we provided in total 16 Sponsorship grants
for a total of USD 16,050 to severals organisations in Africa to
support ICT and Internet development on the continent.




Q)

Capacity Building

AFRINIC plays a leading role in education and capacity building. The Capacity Building department
has embarked on a strategy focusing on IPv6 deployment support and e-learning capability.

AFRINIC offers comprehensive online support through webinars, e-learning courses and online IPv6
deployment helpdesk. This is in addition to IPv6 certification programmes and IPv6 deployathons
conducted throughout Africa and the Indian Ocean in French and English languages.

The e-learning courses enrolled 1400 registrants..

The department ran 4 webinars which were attended by 362 professionals in total. Fifty three percent
of our webinar participants were network engineers, 10.5% were IT Managers and 9.1% were systems
engineers.
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We all start from
somewhere, why not
start with us?

Study Configure Basic IPv6 e-course at your
convenience

IPv6 Strategy and Planning
Virtual Workshop

for Decision & Policy-malkers

Date: 9" and 10" September 2020

Advance your
IPv6 Deployment
today

for your projects in our IPv6
Helpdesk

Get IPv6 Deployment Support / 4
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AFCINIC) svers

® wuufrinic.net - October 1, 2020 808 PM

® wuwofrinicnet - September 1, 2020 121 PM
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Capacity BUIIding We received 66 DO Helpdesk requests
from 23 countries
We conducted 92 Helpdesk Calls for 52 organisations

from 21 countries

362 92

professionals IPv6 help.desk
participated in calls with

4
52

webinars sl
Organisations

We conducted 5 e-Deployathons,
attended by 64 engineers from 45 organisations

DEPLOYATHON

+1400 S

e-deployathon

Enroliments in atiendediby
our elearning 64

courses :
Engineers

Q{Q A AFRINIC also runs certi::6, a multi-tiered programme
< of written exams under the |Pv6 Forum certification
program. The programme validates the knowledge

and skills required to plan, design, configure, manage

and troubleshoot multi-vendor IPv6 networks. In 2021,

You can find more 12 candidates sat for the exam over 18 test attempts.

information on the certi6 Out of these, 4 passed.
website at

https://certi6.io/en/

organisations
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http://www.ipv6forum.com/ipv6_education/Certified/site/faq.php
http://www.ipv6forum.com/ipv6_education/Certified/site/faq.php

AFRINIC IP ACADEMy

Find out more about
AFRINIC's e-learning
courses, webinars,
helpdesk, and certification
programme on
learn.afrinic.net.

Follow the Training Team's
travels and news on
Twitter: @afrinictraining
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Technical Services

2021 was a year of challenges especially in the era of
the pandemic.

Working from home

Due to the pandemic, as for many companies that went
through lockdown, it was a test for the strength of our
infrastructure to support our services.. Staff were able to
operate normally and systems that were usually used to
cater for the dozen people out of office supported the
heavy load of all the staff.



Technical Services

RPKI enhancements MyAFRINIC

We have deployed a new HSM to enhance the RPKI

infrastructure. Since September, all the critical Along with the OS and Perl library upgrades, we introduced the
operations on the RPKI benefit from an integration with following security features:

the HSM. There was also some major OS upgrades to
benefit from the latest libraries and security patches. It
is worth noting that the RPKI adoption has increased

by 71% in 2021. 1. Optional use of 2 Factor Authentication.
2. Upgrading password encryption from MD5 to
BCRYPT.
3. Protection against brute force attacks.
4. Account locking after a number of failed login
attempts.
Resiliency of critical services 5. Tracklogin history. .
6. Security challenge questions.
In 2021, AFRINIC has started operating a datacenter in 7. Login notifications in case of a new device or new
Mombasa, to have better redundancy for critical services. We location login.

are now operating four datacenters with a decentralized
infrastructure and dynamic redundancy for most services. The
RPKI has also been enhanced with the deployment of a HSM.
With more peering at exchange points and a move to the cloud,
we continuously improve the resiliency of our critical services.



Technical Services
MyAFRINIC v2 - Alpha release is here!

AFRINIC is revamping the current MyAFRINIC.
MyAFRINIC v2 will allow our members to better
engage with AFRINIC services and products.

In 2021, we have launched the Alpha release! If you
have an account and access to the V1, you can
already access the alpha release on our release
candidate environment with your production
credentials at https://myafrinic2-rc.afrinic.net

We are incrementally working towards the final
version using the input of 280+ survey respondents
and the ongoing feedback of the Alpha release

Our vision of MyAFRINIC V2 revolves around how

we can make the Internet better by empowering our
customers.
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WHOIS

The following features were implemented in our
WHOIS Database:

Exclude AFRINIC resources from deletion.

Exclude legacy resources from deletion.

Update lame delegation notification emails after
resource transfers on WHOIS.

On the infrastructure side, we increased the number of
lame checker nodes from 2 to 4 for an enhanced
reliability of the lameness results.




People and Productivity

AFRINIC is a culturally diverse organisation employing talents from 12 different countries mainly across Africa. AFRINIC celebrates diversity
of culture, background, experience and thought and recognises these as key to deliver effective services to our members and the community.

AFRINIC Staff serves its Members and the African Internet community and has 46 staff.

Evolution of Staff
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Turnover rate
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People and Productivity

The employee turnover rate for 2021 is at 14.3%.

Staff Turnover Rate
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People and Productivity

Learning & Development

All staff trained on SLII by Ken
Blanchard

All staff trained on Agile Shift
Methodologies

Agile deployment started in five teams
in 2021

Psychological well-being session with
staff members organised in April 2021
to help staff cope with the increased
level of stress from working from home
during weeks of lockdown

Learn & Lunch session — How to strive
during these challenging times to keep
employees motivated during AFRINIC’s
Bank accounts freeze

Thank you staff get-together organised
to thank staff for their resilience and
courage during AFRINIC’s bank
accounts freeze

AFRICARE — an AFRINIC initiative to
promote and maintain psychological
well-being among our staff.

1ISO 9001 : 2015 Surveillance Audit

ISO Auditors from the SGS were at AFRINIC for their
surveillance audit in March 2021.



Financial Report
2021 FINANCIAL RESULTS OVERVIEW

2021 financial results in a nutshell; net surplus; record cash holdings; increased total reserves and improved liquidity ratio. A very healthy
Balance Sheet. AFRINIC faced some major challenges in 2021. On 23™ July 2021, all AFRINIC’s bank accounts were frozen following an
Attachment Order granted by the Learned Judge in Chambers of the Supreme Court. The attachment order was removed on 15" October
2021. As a consequence, AFRINIC was unable to honour its financial commitments and was fortunate to have the support of various
stakeholders. A total amount of USD 504K was received as donation.

Nevertheless, 2021 recorded yet another good operational financial performance closing on a net surplus of $ 1,917K (2020: $2,139K).
Total Revenue recorded a positive growth; equivalent to an increase of 8.2% over the previous year. Closing total cash position reflected
an improvement, with an increase of 28.8% higher than the total holding as at the last audited balance sheet.

AFRINIC Historical Fee Revenue Levels
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REVENUE - Membership fee income

Membership Fees and services related fees from members
remain the primary source of revenue. The financial period under
review saw the transition into Soft landing Phase Il which had an
impact on revenue.

Total Membership fee income grew by 8% from $ 5,532,620 in
2020 to $ 5,978,261 in 2021. Revenue from Allocation and
Assignment fees grew as a direct result of new members’ intake
and additional resources request approved during 2021. Late
Payment Penalties amounted to $ 148K (2020:$87K) whilst
AFRINIC support to Research & Educational Institutions and
Critical Infrastructures in the region, via discounted fees,
amounted to $196K (2020:$7161K). No major improvement on
sponsorships compared to 2020, from regional and international
partners for AFRINIC events, $ 19K The above chart shows the
Fee Revenue steady growth over the years; the Fee Revenue
has doubled since 2012.
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COSTS - Operating Costs

Total operating costs for the financial year to December 2021 amounted to $ 4,107K as compared to $ 3,430k for 2020. HR costs
continue to dominate total operating costs, accounting for 58% (2020: 67%) of Total Operating Costs. Bank charges saw a higher than
anticipated increase due to an increasing number of fee settlements via Credit Card; and increased overall Fee Revenue. A provision
for bad debts was made on 2021 debtors based on an assessment made as per International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS 9).
There has been some fluctuations in the US Dollar/Mauritian Rupee exchange rate for most of the year.

351,899
1,991

2004 2005

821,273

2006

1,081,358

2007

2008

1,387,942

2009

2010

1,431,112

2011

AFRINIC Historical Reserves

2012

9,996,732

8,041,460

5,856,831

4,655,688

3,366,045
2,613,642

1,683,932

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021



Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and
International Accounting Standards (IAS)

Several new International Reporting Standards
became effective as from 2019 and were
adopted where applicable in the financials. IFRS
16 relates to Accounting for Lease and the
Statement of Financial Position reflected the
adjustments under Non-Current Assets and also
included under Non-Current Liabilities. IAS 19
(Employee Benefits) relates to Pension benefits.
The effect is reflected in the financials and
amounted to a provision $50K. Details of all
applicable and adopted Standards are provided
in the AFS.
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The Bottom line

A net Surplus of $ 1,917K
(2020: US$ 2,139K) was
recorded for the financial
year to 31 December 2021.
Consequently, total Reserves
reflected a growth of 24.3%
(2020: 37.3%), increasing to
$ 9,997K from $ 8,041K in
2020. An additional amount
of US$ 2,000K was placed
on Fixed Deposit; hence
increasing the  Strategic
Cash Reserves to $ 6,384K.
The Liquidity Ratio continues
to improve in the light of the
increased closing total cash
holdings of $ 11,910K from $
9,246K in 2020. The Liquidity
Ratio stood at 4:1 (2020:
4.3:1).
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AFRICAN NETWORK INFORMATION CENTRE (AfriNIC) LTD

ANNUAL REPORT - YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

The directors are pleased to present the annual report and audited financial statements of African Network
Information Centre (AfriNIC) Ltd (the “Company™) for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Principal activity
The Company is the Regional Registry for Internet Number Resources for Africa and the Indian Ocean. The
Company is a not for profit organisation.

Results
The results for the year are shown on page 6.

Office bearers and resignations

Directors holding office at 31 December 2021 are listed below:

e Subramanian MOONESAMY

Serge Kabwika ILUNGA (deceased on 23" December 2021)
Oluwaseun Samson OJEDEJI

Habib YOUSSEF

Adewale Emmanuel ADEDOKUN

Eddy Mabano KAYIHURA

Benjamin Adzenyamebeye ESHUN

Abdalla OMARI

Silvio Cabral ALMADA (date of appointment 27" December 2021}
Vika William MPISANE (date of resignation 4™ June 2021)

Mark Elkins (date of appointment 4" June 2021 and date of resignation 26" July 2021)

Statement of directors’ responsibility in respect of the financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Financial Statements in accordance
with applicable laws and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare the Financial Statements in accordance with International
Financial reporting Standards (‘IFRS’) for each financial year, which present fairly the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the Company.

The Directors confirm that, in preparing the Financial Statements, they have to:

» Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently

» Make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent

» State that IFRS have been adhered to, subject to any material departures being disclosed and explained in
the Financial Statements

» Prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial position of the Company to enable them to ensure that the Financial Statements
comply with the Mauritius Companies Act 2001, IFRS and the Financial Reporting Act 2004.

They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Directors’ service contracts
Mr Eddy Kayihura has service contracts with the Company commencing on 4™ November 2019 for a period
of 36 months which is renewable. The contract can be terminated by either party with 3 months’ notice.



AFRICAN NETWORK INFORMATION CENTRE (AfriNIC) LTD

ANNUAL REPORT - YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Remuneration and benefits
Total emoluments and other benefits given to directors by the Company during the year were as follows:

2021 2020

USD UsD

Mr Eddy Kayihura 190,943 179,122
190,943 179,122

Community Support and Engagement
During 2021, AFRINIC provided support to related regional and global organisations and community
members amounting to USD 16,050 (2020: USD 27,950).

Auditors
The fees paid to the auditors were as follows:
2021 2020
USD UsD
Audit fees to BDO & Co 15,450 15,000

The auditors did not receive any fees for other services.

By order of the Board

%)

Director ~Director
Subramanian Moonesamy Eddy M. Kayihura

Date: .....|} MAY 2022 Date: .11 MAY 102



AFRICAN NETWORK INFORMATION CENTRE (AfriNIC) LTD

SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE - 31 DECEMBER 2021

I certify thal, to the best of my knowledge and belicf, African Network Information Centre (AfriNIC) Ltd
(thc "Company”) has lodged with the Registrar of Companics all such returns as arc required of the
Company under the Mauritian Companics Act 2001 for the year ended 31 December 2021.

EXECUTTVRERVICES LiviTEp  ERECUTIVE SERVICES LTD

Per Didjeir ANGSEESING
Company Sccretary

Date: 1 1 MAY 7.[]22



Tel : +230 202 3000 10, Frére Félix de Valois Street
I B DO Fax: +230 202 9993 Port Louis, Mauritius

www,bdo.mu P.O. Box 799

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Registered Members of African Network Information Centre (AfriNIC) Ltd
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of African Network Information Centre (AfriNIC) Ltd (the
Company), on pages 5 to 44 which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and
the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the

year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements on pages 5 to 44 give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Company as at 31 December 2021, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then

ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and comply with the Mauritian
Companies Act 2001.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("ISAs"). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (the "IESBA Code"). We have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in compliance with the requirements of the
Mauritian Companies Act 2001, and for such internal contro! as the directors determine is necessary to

enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

BDO & Co, a firm of Chartered Accountants in Mauritius, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by
guarantee, and forms part of the internationat BDO network of independent member firms.

BLO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.
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4(a)
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONT'D)

To the Registered Members of African Network Information Centre (AfriNIC) Ltd

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
(cont'd)

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by directors.
. Conclude on the appropriateness of directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the retated disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.



|IBDO

4(b)
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONT'D)

To the Registered Members of African Network Information Centre (AfriNIC) Ltd
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Mauritian Companies Act 2001

The Mauritian Companies Act 2001 requires that in carrying out our audit we consider and report on the

following matters. We confirm that:

* We have no relationship with, or interests in, the Company, other than in our capacity as auditors, and
dealings in the ordinary course of business.

* We have obtained all information and explanations we have required.

* In our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company as far as it appears from our
examination of those records.

Other Matter

This report is made solely to the Company's registered members, as a body, in accordance with Section 205
of the Mauritian Companies Act 2001. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company's registered members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for
no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone

other than the Company and the Company's registered members as a body, for our audit work, for this report,
or for the opinions we have formed.

Bou® o

BDO & Co
Chartered Accountants

d\«LLC(-\'

Port Louis, Didier Dabydin, FCA
Mauritius. Licensed by FRC

11 MAY 2022



AFRICAN NETWORK INFORMATION CENTRE (AfriNIC) LTD

5
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - 31 DECEMBER 2021
Notes 2021 2020
USD usD
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Plant and equipment 4 469,251 493,507
Right-of-use assets 5 558,056 653,309
Intangible assets 6 36,008 37,436
1,063,315 1,184,252
Current assets
Trade receivables 7 56,586 159,729
Prepayments and other receivables 8 443,357 230,241
Financial assets at amortised cost 9 6,384,266 4,338,805
Cash and cash equivalents 16(b) 5,525,814 4,907,528
12,410,023 9,636,303
Total assets UsSD 13,473,338 10,820,555
RESERVES AND LIABILITIES
Reserves
Revenue reserve 10 9,933,158 8,016,181
Actuarial reserve 17 63,574 25,279
Net assets attributable to members 9,996,732 8,041,460
Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities 5 316,500 472,294
Contract liabilities 11(b) - 400
Retirement benefit obligations 13 50,080 81,208
366,580 553,902
Current liabilities
Lease liabilities 5 124,042 116,456
Trade and other payables 12 1,440,718 547,669
Contract liabilities 11(b) 1,545,266 1,561,068
3,110,026 2,225,193
Total liabilities 3,476,606 2,779,095
Total equity and liabilities uUsD 13,473,338 10,820,555
The financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 1.1 MAY 2022

Subramanian Moonesamy

Eddy M. Kayihura

opach

R A

The notes on pages 9 to 44 form an integral part of the financial statements.

Auditor's report on pages 4 to 4(b).

DIRECTORS



AFRICAN NETWORK INFORMATION CENTRE (AfriNIC) LTD

6
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
Notes 2021 2020
USD USD
Income 1 6,024,377 5,569,164
Distribution cxpenses 15 (355,788) (345,461)
Administrative expenses 15 (3,712,572) (3,135,774)
Net impairment losses on financial assets 7/15 (50,957 (56,738)
Surplus of income over expenditure 1,905,060 2,031,191
Finance income 14 80,443 154,286
Finance costs 14 (68,526) (46,381)
Surplus before taxation 1,916,977 2,139,096
Taxation 18 - -
Surplus for the year 1,916,977 2,139,096
Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligations 13/17 38,295 45,533
Other comprehensive income for the year 38,295 45,533
Total comprehensive income for the year UsSD 1,955,272 2,184,629

The notes on pages 9 to 44 form an integral part of the financial statements.
Auditor's report on pages 4 10 4(b).



AFRICAN NETWORK INFORMATION CENTRE (AfriNIC) LTD

7
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY - YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
Revenue Actuarial

Notes reserve reserve Total

UsD uUsb USD
At 01 January 2021 8,016,181 25,279 8,041,460
Surplus for the year 1,916,977 - 1,916,977
Other comprehensive income for the year 17 - 38,295 38,295
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,916,977 38,295 1,955,272
At 31 December 2021 USD 9,933,158 63,574 9,996,732
At 01 January 2020 5,877,085 (20,254) 5,856,831
Surplus for the year 2,139,096 - 2,139,096
Other comprehensive income for the year 17 = 45,533 45,533
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,139,096 45,533 2,184,629
At 31 December 2020 USD 8,016,181 25,279 8,041,460

The notes on pages 9 to 44 form an intcgral part of the financial statements.

Auditor's report on pages 4 to 4(b).
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
Note 2021 2020
USD uUsD

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 16(a) 2,902,911 2,936,470
Interest received 45,303 90,372
Net cash generated from operating activities 2,948,214 3,026,842
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of plant and equipment 4 (107,284) (431,612)
New deposits (2,041,906) (4,325,795)
Proceeds from maturity of deposits - 3,235,422
Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment - 13,793
Net cash used in investing activities (2,149,190) (1,508,192)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid on lease liabilities 5 (36,229) (46,291)
Principal paid on lease liabilities 5 (114,867) (109,537)
Net cash used in financing activities (151,096) (155,828)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 647,928 1,362,822
Movement in cash and cash equivalents:-
At 1 January 4,907,528 3,537,051
Effects of exchange rate changes (29,642) 7,655
Increase 647,928 1,362,822
At 31 December 16(b) 5,525,814 4,907,528

The notes on pages 9 to 44 form an integral part of the financial statements.

Auditor's report on pages 4 to 4(b).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

1.

2.1

GENERAL INFORMATION

African Network Information Centre (AfriNIC) Ltd, (the "Company”) is a private company limited by
guarantce incorporated in the Republic of Mauritius. Its registered address and place of business is
situated at 11th Floor, Standard Chartered Tower, Cybercity, Ebéne, Republic of Mauritius.

The principal activity has remained unchanged during the year and consists of being the Regional
Registry for Internet Number Resources for Africa and the Indian Occan. The Company is a not-for-
profit organisation.

In January 2008, AfriNIC Board passed the following Resolution Reference 200801.60 “ AfriNIC
should endeavour to build a reserve fund sufficient to cover two years of operational expenses.”

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 were authorised for
issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 11 May 2022.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with and comply with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and comply with the Mauritian Companies Act 2001,

These financial statements are those of an individual entity. The financial statements are presented in
United States dollars (“USD™).

Where necessary, comparative figures have becn amended to conform with change in presentation in the
current ycar. The financial statements arc prepared under the historical cost convention, except that
relevant financial assets and financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost.

Standards, Amendments to published Standards and Interpretations effective in the reporting
period

The following Standards, Amendments and Interpretations did not have an impact on the Company's
financial statements.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform Phase 2

The amendments to IFRS 9, IFRS 7 and IFRS 16 amend requirements relating to changes in the basis
for determining contractual cash flows of financial assets, financial liabilitics and lcase liabilities, hedge
accounting and disclosurcs.

{FRS 7 Financial Instruments - Disclosures : The amendment to IFRS 7 requires a company to make
additional disclosurcs in its financial statcments so that investors can better understand the effects of
IBOR reform on that company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2.1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Basis of preparation (cont'd)

Standards, Amendments to published Standards and Interpretations effective in the reporting
period (cont'd)

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform Phase 2 (cont'd)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: The amendments to IFRS 9 cnable a company to apply a practical
expedient to account for a change in the contractual cash flows that arc required by IBOR reform by
updating the effective interest rate to reflect any change arising from the reform.

IFRS 16 Leases: The amendment to IFRS 16 enables a company to apply a practical expedient to
account for a lease modification required by the IBOR reform.

IFRS 16 Leases

Covid 19 related rent concessions: Effective 1 June 2020, further to IFRS 16 amendment to provide a
practical expedient for lessees accounting for rent concessions that arise as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic. The amendment provides lessees with an exemption from assessing whether a
COVID-19-related rent concession is a lease modification. The amendments have no impact on the
Company’s financial statements.

Standards, Amendments to published Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective
Certain standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations have been issued that are

mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after | January 2022 or later periods, but which the
Company has not carly adopted.

At the reporting date of these financial statements, the following were in issue but not yet effective:

Effective date January 1, 2022

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
Arnual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020

IFRS 3 Business Combinations - Reference to the Conceptual Framework
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use: The amendments prohibit an entity
from deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from sclling
items produced whilc bringing that asset to the location and condition nccessary for it (o be capable of
opcrating in the manner intended by management.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2.1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Basis of preparation (cont'd)

Standards, Amendments to published Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective
(cont'd)

Effective date January 1, 2022 (cont'd)

IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Onerous Contracts-Cost of Fulfilling a Contract: The amendments specify which costs should be
included in an entity’s assessment whether a contract will be loss-making.

Effective date January 1, 2023

I1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Noncurrent : Narrow-scope amendments to IAS 1 to clarify
how to classify debt and other liabilities as current or non-current.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies: The amendments require companies to disclose their material
accounting policy information rather than their significant accounting policies, with additional guidance
added to the Standard to explain how an entity can identify material accounting policy information with
cxamples of when accounting policy information is likely to be material.

IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

Definition of Accounting Estimates: The amendments clarify how companies should distinguish
changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates, by replacing the definition of a
change in accounting estimates with a new definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition,
accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements that arc subject to measurement
uncertainty”, The requirements for recognising the effect of change in accounting prospectively remain
unchanged.

IAS 12 Income Taxes
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

Amendment for which effective date has been deferred indefinitely until further notice

IFRS 10 Conseclidated Financial Statements

Sale or Contribution of Assets benween an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to
IFRS 10 and IAS 28)

IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to
IFRS 10 and 148 28)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2.1

22

)

(i)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Basis of preparation (cont'd)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to cxercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Company's accounting policies. The arcas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or

areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in Note
3.

Plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Items of plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost
of self-constructed asscts includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use, the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located and capitalised borrowing costs.
Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of
that equipment.

If significant parts of an item of plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of plant and equipment are determined by comparing the net
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of the item, and arc recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Company. Ongoing repairs and maintenance are expensed as
incurred.

(ii1) Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write off the cost of each asset to its residual
valuc over its cstimated uscful life. Residual value is the estimated amount that the Company would
currently obtain from disposal of the assct after deducting the estimated cost of disposal and if the asset
was alrcady of the age and in the condition cxpected at the end of its uscful life.

The principal annual rates of depreciation are:
o

Computer equipment 20
Motor vehicles 20
Office cquipment 20
Fixtures & fittings 10

Building Improvements 10
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2.

22

2.3

(@)

(i)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Plant and equipment (cont'd)

Items of plant and equipment are depreciated for the full year in the year of purchase and ready for use
and no depreciation is charged in the year of disposal. All plant and cquipment have a nil residual value.
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
if appropriate.

Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets acquired by the Company have finite useful lives and are measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure ts capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in
the specific asset to which it relates.

(i1i) Amortisation

2.4

(2)

()

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values

using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, and is generally recognised in the profit
or loss.

The estimated uscful lives for the current and comparative years are as follows:
Computer software: 3 - 5 Years
Financial assets

Categories of financial assets
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories:

At amortised cost

These assets arise principally from the provision of services to customers (eg trade receivables), but also
incorporate other types of financial asscts where the objective is to hold these assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest.
They are initially recognised at fair valuc plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to their
acquisition or issue, and arc subsequently carried at amortised cost using the cffective intercst rate
method, less provision for impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

24

(a)
(i)

25

€)

2.6

2.7

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Financial assets (cont'd)

Categories of financial assets (cont'd)

At amortised cost {cont'd)

Impairment provisions for trade receivables are recognised based on the simplified approach within
IFRS 9 using the lifetime expected credit losses. During this process the probability of the non-
payment of the trade receivables is assessed. This probability is then multiplied by the amount of the
expected loss arising from default to determine the lifetime expected credit loss for the trade
receivables. For trade receivables, which are reported net, such provisions are recorded in a scparate
provision account with the loss being recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. On
confirmation that the trade reccivable will not be collectable, the gross carrying value of the asset is
written off against the associated provision.

From time to time, the Company elects to rencgotiate the terms of trade receivables due from customers
with which it has previously had a good trading history. Such renegotiations will lead to changes in the
timing of payments rather than changes to the amounts owed and, in consequence, the new expected
cash flows are discounted at the original effective interest rate and any resulting difference to the
carrying value is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income (operating profit).

The Company's financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise trade receivables, financial assets
at amortised cost and cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and at bank.
Financial liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities as follows, depending on the purpose for which the
liability was acquired.

Other financial liabilities
Trade payables and other short-term monetary liabilities, are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently carricd at amortised cost using the cffective interest method.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Asscts that are subject to amortisation arc reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be rccoverable. An impairment loss is
recogniscd for the amount by which the carrying amount of the assct cxceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an assct's fair valuc less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of asscssing impairment, assets arc grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-gencrating units).

Income tax

The Company is exempted from income tax by the Mauritian tax authority.
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2.8

t)

(i)

29

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Foreign currencies

Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements are mcasured using United States dollars (“USD™), the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates ("functional currency").
The financial statements are presented in United States dollars (“USD™), which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency.

The Company has obtained the approval of the Registrar of Companies to present its financial
statements in United States dollars (“USD”). The average exchange rate for USD to MUR as at 31
December 2021 as provided by the State Bank of Mauritius was MUR 43.10 (2020: MUR 39.40).

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencics are translated to the USD at exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that arc measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Leases

Leases are accounted for by recognising a right-of-use asset and a lease liability except for:
*  Leases of low value assets; and
*  Leases with a duration of 12 months or less,

Identifving Leases

The Company accounts for a contract, or a portion of a contract, as a lease when it conveys the right to
use an asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Leases arc those contracts that satisfy
the following criteria:

(a) There is an identified asset;

(b) The Company obtains substantially all the economic benefits from use of the asset; and

(c) The Company has the right to dircct use of the assct.

The Company considers whether the supplicr has substantive substitution rights. If the supplicr does
have thosc rights, the contract is not identificd as giving risc to a leasc.

In determining whether the Company obtains substantially all the cconomic bencfits from usc of the
assct, the Company considers only the economic benefits that arise from use of the asset, not those
incidental to legal ownership or other potential benefits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.9 Leases (cont'd)

Identifying Leases (cont'd)

In determining whether the Company has the right to direct use of the asset, the Company considers
whether it directs how and for what purpose the asset is used throughout the period of use. If there are
no significant decisions to be made because they are pre-determined due to the nature of the asset, the
Company considers whether it was involved in the design of the asset in a way that predetermines how
and for what purpose the asset will be used throughout the period of use. If the contract or portion of a

contract does not satisfy these criteria, the Company applies other applicable IFRSs rather than IFRS
16.

Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the contractual payments due to the lessor over
the lease term, with the discount rate determined by reference to the rate inherent in the lease unless
(as is typically the case) this is not readily determinable, in which case the Company’s incremental
borrowing rate on commencement of the lease is used. Variable lease payments are only included in
the measurement of the lease liability if they depend on an index or rate. In such cases, the initial
measurement of the lease liability assumes the variable element will remain unchanged throughout the
lease term. Other variable lease payments are expensed in the period to which they relate.

On initial recognition, the carrying value of the lease liability also includes:

* amounts expected to be payable under any residual value guarantee;

» the exercise price of any purchase option granted in favour of the Company if it is reasonably
certain to assess that option;

*  any penalties payable for terminating the lease, if the term of the lease has been estimated on the
basis of termination option being exercised.

Right of use assets are initially measured at the amount of the lease liability, reduced for any lease

incentives received, and increased for:

* lease payments made at or before commencement of the lease;

* initial direct costs incurred; and

+  the amount of any provision recognised where the Company is contractually required to dismantle,
remove or restore the leased assct (typically leaschold dilapidations).

Subsequent to initial measurement lease liabilities increasc as a result of interest charged at a constant
ratc on the balance outstanding and are reduced for Icasc payments made. Right-of-use assets are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the remaining term of the lease or over the remaining economic
life of the asset if, rarely, this is judged to be shorter than the leasc term.

When the Company revises its estimate of the term of any lcasc (because, for example, it rc-asscsses
the probability of a lessec extension or termination option being exercised), it adjusts the carrying
amount of the lease liability to reflect the payments to make over the revised term, which are
discounted at the same discount rate that applicd on lcase commencement. The carrying valuc of lease
liabilitics is similarly revised when the variable clement of future leasc payments dependent on a rate
or index is revised. In both cases an equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying value of the right-of-
usc asset, with the revised carrying amount being amortised over the remaining (revised) lease term.



AFRICAN NETWORK INFORMATION CENTRE (AfriNIC) LTD

17

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

29

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Leases (cont'd)

Identifying Leases (cont'd)

When the Company renegotiates the contractual terms of a lcase with the lessor, the accounting

depends on the nature of the modification:

+ if the renegotiation results in one or more additional assets being leased for an amount
commensurate with the standalone price for the additional rights-of-use obtained, the modification
is accounted for as a separate lease in accordance with the above policy.

* in all other cascs where the rencgotiated increases the scope of the lease (whether that is an
extension to the lease term, or one or morc additional assets being leased), the lease liability is
remeasured using the discount rate applicable on the modification date, with the right-of-use asset
being adjusted by the same amount.

+ if the renegotiation results in a decrease in the scope of the lease, both the carrying amount of the
lease liability and right-of-use asset are reduced by the same proportion to reflect the partial of full
termination of the lease with any difference recognised in profit or loss. The lease liability is then
further adjusted to ensure its carrying amount reflects the amount of the renegotiated payments
over the renegotiated term, with the modified leasec payments discounted at the rate applicable on
the modification date. The right-of-use asset is adjusted by the same amount.

For contracts that both convey a right to the Company to use an identified assct and require services to
be provided to the Company by the lessor, the Company has elected to account for the entire contract
as a lease, i.e. it does allocate any amount of the contractual payments to, and account separately for,
any services provided by the supplier as part of the contract.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss.

2.10 Retirement benefit obligations

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity. The Company has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if
the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employces the benefits relating to employee service
in the current and prior periods.

The Company operates a defined contribution retirement benefit plan for certain employces. Payments
to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service that
cntitles them to the contributions.

Gratuity on retirement

For certain employces where the statutory gratuity is insufficiently covercd by the above pension plans,
the net present value of rctirement gratuity payable under the Workers' Rights Act is calculated by a
qualified actuary and provided for. The obligations arising under this itcm are not funded.
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2.11

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Provisions

Provisions arc recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources that can be reliably estimated will be
required to settle the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to scttle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and unccrtainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the

present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the
time value of money is material).

2.12 Revenue recognition

(@)

(b)

(c)

2.13

Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services is transferred to the

customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled for
those scrvices.

Revenue consists principally of membership fees charged for the use of Internet Number Resources.
The Company recognises revenue over the time of the contract through which these resources are
provided to the customers.

Determining the transaction price
Most of the revenue is derived from fixed price contracts and therefore the amount of revenue to be
earned from cach contract is determined by reference to those fixed prices.

Allocating amounts to performance obligations
For most contracts, there is a fixed unit price for each service sold, with reductions given for early

settlement. Therefore, there is no judgement involved in allocating the contract price to cach service in
such contracts.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to considcration in exchange for services transferred to the customer. If
the Company performs by transferring services to a customer before the customner pays consideration
or before payment is due, a contract assct is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is thc obligation to transfer services to a customer for which the Company has
reccived consideration (or an amount of consideration is duc) from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Company transfers services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised
when the payment is made or the payment is duc (whichever is carlier). Contract liabilitics arc
recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Interest income

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial assct except for financial asscts that subsequently become credit-impaired.
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(a)

(b

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requircs management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilitics and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the financial year are discussed below. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Pension benefits

The present value of the pension obligations depend on a number of factors that are determined on an
actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost
(income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the
carrying amount of pension obligations.

The Company determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate
that should be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be
required to scttle the pension obligations. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the Company
considers the interest rates of government bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the
benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related pension
liability.

Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based in part on past and current market conditions.
Additional information is disclosed in Note 13.

Estimated useful lives and residual values of plant and equipment

Determining the carrying amounts of plant and equipment requires the cstimation of the useful lives and
residual values of these assets, Certain plant and equipment of the Company are separated into their
significant parts and estimates of the uscful lives and residual values thercof are made for the purposes
of calculating depreciation. The ecstimates of useful lives and residual values carry a degree of
uncertainty. The Dircctors have used historical information relating to the Company and the relevant
industry 1n which the Company operates in order to best determine the uscful lives and residual values
of plant and equipment.
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(c)

(d)

(e)

0

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONT'D)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on judgements about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on the Company's past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Leases
In determining the lease term for the property being rented, management considers the broader
economics of its arrangement with the lessor, including the economic penalties for both the lessor and

the Company if the Company were to vacate the leased premises.

Limitation of sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis in respect of market risk demonstrates the effect of a change in a key assumption
while other assumptions remain unchanged. In reality, there is a correlation between the assumptions
and other factors. It should also be noted that these sensitivities are non-linear and larger or smaller
impacts should not be interpolated or extrapolated from these results.

Litigation cases

There has been a number of legal cases that have been lodged against the Company. There is an element
of uncertainty in determining the outcome of these legal cases and the potential impact on the Company
in terms of litigation liability and going concern. The directors have exercised significant judgement in
assessing any potential liability and have determined that there is no material uncertainty related to
going concemn. Refer to Note 23.
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4. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Computer Office Fixtures & Building Work in
Equipment Equipment Fittings Improvements  Progress Total
USD USD USD USD USD UsD
(a) COST
At 1 January 2021 962,700 102,651 113,222 171,302 23,213 1,373,088
Additions 99,046 1,185 2,338 4,715 - 107,284
Transfer 23,213 - - - (23,213) -
At 31 December 2021 1,084,959 103,836 115,560 176,017 - 1,480,372
DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2021 743,781 83,912 18,463 33,425 - 879,581
Charge for the year 95,357 7,357 11,334 17,492 - 131,540
At 31 December 2021 839,138 91,269 29,797 50,917 - 1,011,121
NET BOOK VALUES
At 31 December 2021 UsSD 245,821 12,567 85,763 125,100 - 469,251
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4. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D) Computer Motor Office Fixtures & Building Work in
Equipment Vehicles Equipment Fittings Improvements  Progress Total
USD USD usD USD USD UsD USD
(b) COST
At 1 January 2020 906,638 71,988 114,334 64,376 274,482 - 1,431,818
Additions 149,987 - 2,822 104,579 151,011 23,213 431,612
Disposals - (71,988) - (43,914) - - (115,902)
Scrapped assets {93,925) - (14,505) {11,819) (254,191) - (374,440)
At 31 December 2020 962,700 - 102,651 113,222 171,302 23,213 1,373,088
DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2020 759,793 71,988 89,971 51,544 269,521 - 1,242,817
Charge for the year 74,510 - 7,942 11,294 17,131 - 110,877
Disposals adjustment - (71,988) - (34,675) - - (106,663)
Scrapped assets adjustment (90,522) - (14,001) {9,700) (253,227) - (367,450)
At 31 December 2020 743,781 - 83,912 18,463 33,425 - 879,581
NET BOOK VALUES
At 31 December 2020 UsD 218,919 - 18,739 94,759 137,877 23,213 493,507

(c) Depreciation charge of USD 131,540 (2020: USD 110,877) has been charged to administrative expenses.
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5. RIGHT-OF-USE-ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS Building and parking
2021 2020
UsD USD
At 1 January 653,309 776,446
Amortisation (117,180) (129,793)
Variable lease payment adjustment * 21,927 -
Effect of modification to lease terms - 6,656
At 31 December UsD 558,056 653,309
LEASE LIABILITIES Building and parking
2021 2020
USD USD
At 1 January 588,750 744,804
Interest expense 36,229 46,291
Variable lease payment adjustment * 11,950 -
Effect of modification to lease terms - 6,656
Lease payments (151,096) (155,828)
Exchange differences (45,291) (53,173)
At 31 December USD 440,542 588,750
Current 124,042 116,456
Non current 316,500 472,294
UsD 440,542 588,750

* Variable lease payment adjustment relates to increase in rental.

(a) Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee)

The Company leases property for its office and parking, with payments to increase by 5% p.a from

February 2022 and 8% p.a respectively.

(b) Lease term

In determining the period over which the lcase remains enforceable, the Company has considered the
broader cconomics of the arrangement with the lessor including the cconomic penalties for both the
Company and the Iessor if the Company were to vacate the premises. The leasc is for a period of 5 years
from 1/02/2020 to 1/01/2025. Either party shall have the right to terminate the lease by giving 6 months
notice after the first 3 yecars. Management considers that the lease is for a period of 5 years, mainly
given that the Company undertook major refurbishment in 2020, hence will incur significant penalty if

they terminate the lcase before 5 years.
(c)

Interest expense (included in finance cost)
Expensc relating to short-term lease
(included in administrative expenscs)

2021 2020

USD USD
36,229 46,291
9,569 8,874

The total cash outflow for leascs in 2021 was USD 151,096 (2020: USD 155,828).
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6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 2021 2020
USD USD
Computer software:
COST
At | January 148,047 174,542
Scrapped assets - (26,495)
At 31 December 148,047 148,047
AMORTISATION
At 1 January 110,611 118,567
Charge for the year 1,428 1,427
Scrapped adjustment - {9,383)
At 31 December 112,039 110,611
NET BOOK VALUES usD 36,008 37,436
{(a) Amortisation charge of USD 1,428 (2020: USD 1,427) for the Company has been charged to
administrative expenses.
7. TRADE RECEIVABLES 2021 2020
USD USD
Trade receivables 74,992 262,573
Less: provision for impairment {18,4006) (102,844)
Trade reccivables - net UsD 56,586 159,729
(i) Impairment of trade receivables

The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade reccivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk
charactcristics and the days past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 36 months before
December 31, 2021 and the corresponding historical credit losses expericneed within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. Specific circumstances for some
debtors are also taken into consideration in arriving at specific impairment.
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(i)

(iii)

TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONT'D)

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 was determined as
follows for trade receivables:

At December 31, More than

2021 1-30days 31-60days 61 -90 days 90 days Total
USD USD USD USD USD

Expected loss rate 1% 20% 8% 27% 25%

Gross carrying amount -

trade receivable 1,907 17,935 1,700 53,450 74,992

Loss allowance (28) (3,558) (137) (14,683) (18,406)

At December 31, More than

2020 1-30days 31-60days 61 -90 days 90 days Total
USD UsD USD USD USD

Expected loss rate 17% 26% 20% 44% 39%

Gross carrying amount -

trade receivable 39,935 1,574 3,209 217,855 262,573

Loss allowance (6,719) (413) (636) (95,076) (102,844)

The closing loss allowances for trade receivables as at December 31, 2021 reconcile to the opening
loss allowances as follows:

Trade receivables

2021 2020
USD USD
At 1 January 102,844 202,643
Loss allowance recognised in profit or loss during the ycar 50,957 56,738
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible (135,395) (156,537)
At 31 December 18,406 102,844

The carrying amounts of the Company's trade reccivables are denominated in the following currencies:
rymng pany g

2021 2020

USD ushD
United States dollars 55,132 154,300
Euro 1,454 5,429

56,586 159,729

The maximum expostire to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of cach class of receivable
mentioned above. The Company doces not hold any collateral as security.
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8.  PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 2021 2020
USD Ush
Prepayments 186,169 77,366
Deposits 35,798 35,798
Other receivables 221,390 117,077
USDh 443,357 230,241
The carrying amounts of other receivables are denominated in United States dollar and approximate
their fair value. Other receivables do not include any overdue balances, hence no loss allowance is
recorded. Other receivables include funds amounting to $99,890 held by OTAM and Tespok on behalf
of the Company.
9.  FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST
2021 2020
UsD usSD USD USD
(a) Current Non-current Current Non-current
Fixed deposits USD 6,384,266 - 4,338,805 -
A Board Resolution dated 27 November 2015, authorised the creation of a strategic Cash Reserve
from AFRINIC's own cash holdings with the following rules:
(a) that a suitable interest-bearing bank account be created for the Strategic Cash Reserve;
(b} that any expenditure or transfers out of the Strategic Cash Reserve bank account shall require three
signatories, comprising the CEQ, the Financial Director and either the Chairman or the Vice-chairman
of the Board; and
(c) that any expenditure or transfers out of the Strategic Cash Reserves shall be authorised by the
Board.
As at 31 December 2021, an additional amount of $2m was added and the Strategic Cash Reserve
consisted of a total of USD 6,384,266 (2020: USD 4,338,805) which is held in fixed deposits accounts
bearing interest rates varying from 0.40% to 0.85% per annum with a maturity of twelve months from
December 2021.
(b) Impairment and risk exposure
(i) The loss allowance for financial assets at amortiscd cost as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2020 amounted to Nil.
(i1) The carrying amounts of the financial assets at amortised cost are denominated in USD. There is no
exposure to price risk as the investments will be held to maturity.
10. REVENUE RESERVE

The Company does not have a share capital.

Funding for the running of the Company shall be rcalised from the following:

(i) membership fees from members;

(i1} sctup fees for bulk registration services;

(iii) assignment/allocation fees for individual address space assignments/allocation;
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i0.

11.

(a)

REVENUE RESERVE (CONT'D)

Funding for the running of the Company shall be realised from the following: (cont'd)

(iv) maintenance fees for non-contiguous, non ISP address space;
(v) registration fees for individual address space transfers;

(vi) setup fees for autonomous system number ("ASN") assignments;

(vii) grants and/or voluntary donations; and

(viii) such other sources as may be deemed appropriate from time to time by the Board.

The fees mentioned above shall be subject to review from time to time by the Board.

Revenue reserve

Revenue reserve refers to the undistributed and accumulated surpluses over the years the Company has

been in existence.

In January 2008, AFRINIC Board passed the following Resolution Reference 200801.60 “ AfriNIC
should endeavour to build 2 reserve fund sufficient to cover two years of operational expenscs.”

INCOME

The following is an analysis of the Company's income for the year:

Revenue from rendering of services:

Membership renewal fees

Allocation or assignment fees

Revenue from contracts with customers (note (a))
Sponsorship for Afrinic events

Other income (note (d))

Note on discounts
Early scttlement
Educational & critical Infrastructure

Disaggregation of rcvenue from contracts with customers

Product type
Membership rencwal fees
Allocation or assignment fees

Timing of revenue recognition
Over time

USD

USb

uSDh

USD

2021 2020
usD USD
5,269,054 4,988,362
709,207 544,258
5,978,261 5,532,620
18,500 19,000
27,616 17,544
6,024,377 5,569,164
67,314 47,908
128,525 113,338
195,839 161,246
2021 2020
USD USsD
5,269,054 4,988,362
709,207 544,258
5978261 5,532,620
5978261 5,532,620
5978261 5,532,620
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11. INCOME (CONT'D)
(b) Liabilities related to contracts with customers Contract Liabilities
2021 2020
UsD USsD
At 1 January (1,561,468) (1,181,664)
Cash received in advance of performance
and not recognised as revenue during the period (1,469,779) (1,450,987)
Amounts included in contract liabilitics
that were recognised as revenue during the period 1,485,981 1,071,183
At 31 December USD  (1,545,266) (1,501,468)
Analysed as follows:
Current (1,545,266) (1,561,068)
Non current - (400)
USD (1,545,266) (1,561,468)

(c)

(d)

Contract liabilities arise from fees received in one period relating to future membership years.

Remaining performance obligations

The amount of revenue that will be recognised in future periods on these contracts when those

remaining performance obligations will be satisfied is analysed as follows:

At 31 December 2021 2022 2023 Total
uUsD USD Rs.
Membership renewal fees 1,499,609 - 1,499,609
Allocation or assignment fees 11,457 - 11,457
Others 34,200 - 34,200
1,545,266 - 1,545,266
At 31 December 2020 2021 2022 Total
USD UshD Rs.
Membership renewal fecs 1,408,004 400 1,408,404
Allocation or assignment fees 17,859 - 17,859
Others 135,205 - 135,205
1,561,068 400 1,561,468
Other income 2021 2020
USD UsD
Certification income 423 2,685
Bad debts recovered 27,193 14,000
Others - 859
UsD 27,616 17,544
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2021 2020
USD UsSD
Trade payables 451,052 162,143
Othcr payablcs 485,428 385,526
Funds from organisations (i) 504,238

USD 1,440,718

547,669
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12.

(i)

13.

®

(i)

(iii)

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONT'D)

The Company has received funds of $504,238 for their day-to-day activities from several
Organisations. In the absence of proper agreements in place, these funds have been classified as
liabilitics.

The carrying amount of tradc and other payables approximates their fair value.

Trade payables represent amount owed to trade creditors as well as suppliers of goods and services.

Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:
- Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-day terms.
- Other payables are non-interest bearing and have an average term of six months.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The liability relates to retirement gratuities payable under the Workers' Rights Act. The latter provides
for a lump sum at retirement based on final salary and years of service. Half of any lumpsum and 5

years pension (relating to the employer's share of contribution only) payable from the funds have been
offset from the retirement gratuities.

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:

2021 2020
Other post employment benefits USD USD
Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligations USD 50,080 81,208
Movement in liability recognised in statement of financial position: 2021 2020

USD USD
At 1 January 81,208 140,013
Charged to profit or loss 13,125 14,771
Actuarial gains recognised in other comprchensive income (38,295) (45,533)
Exchange gain (5,958) (11,393)
Benefit paid - (16,650)
At 31 December USD 50,080 81,208

The movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation over the year is as follows:

2021 2020

USD UsDh
At 1 January 81,208 140,013
Current service cost 10,577 8,493
Interest cost 2,548 6,278
Actuarial gains (38,295) (45,533)
Exchange gain (5,958) (11,393)
Benefit paid - (16,650)

At 31 December usD 50,080 81,208
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13, RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D)
(iv) The amounts recognised in profit or loss arc as follows: 2021 2020
USD USD
Current service cost 10,577 8,493
Net interest cost 2,548 6,278
Total included in employee benefit expense (Note 15) USD 13,125 14,771
(v) The amounts recognised in other comprehensive income are as follows: 2021 2020
USD USD
Experience gains on the liabilities 886 45,276
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the scheme 37,409 257
USD 38,295 45,533
{(vi) Sensitivity analysis on defined benefit obligations at end of the reporting date:
2021 2020
Increase/ Increase/
(Decrease)  (Decrease)
31 December USD UsD
Increase of 1% in Discount rate (20,072) (24,773)
Decrease of 1% in Discount rate 24,623 30,871
Increase of 1% in Future long-term salary assumption 24,859 30,640
Decrease of 1% in Future long-term salary assumption (20,566) (25,055)
An increase/decrease of 1% in other principal actuarial assumptions would not have a material impact
on defined benefit obligations at the end of the reporting period.
(vii) The sensitivity above have been determined based on sensibly possible changes of the discount rate or

salary increase rate occurring at the end of the reporting period if all other assumptions remained
unchanged.

The sensitivity analysis may not be represcntative of the actual change in the unfunded obligation as it
1s unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the
assumptions may be correlated.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from
prior years.

(viil) The average remaining working life of the employees at 31 December 2021 is 18 years (2020: 20

(1x}

ycars).
The principal actuarial assumptions used for accounting purposes werc: 2021 2020

% %
Discount rate 4.90 3.30

Future long-term salary increasc 3.00 3.00
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13. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D)

(x) The Company is exposed to the following risks:
Longevity risk- employecs living longer than expected cxposing the employer to the risk that more
employees make it to retirement.
Interest rate risk- risk that yields on bonds decrease lcading to higher provisions for benefits.
Liquidity risk- risk that employer's cashflow not sufficient to pay benefits.
Mortality risk- risk that higher than expected deaths leading to unexpected pay-outs.

Salary risk - risk that salary increases are higher than assumed leading to an increase in the liabilities
giving rise to actuarial losses.

14. NET FINANCE (COSTSYINCOME 2021 2020
USD USD
Finance income
Bank interest income 48,858 76,035
Realised gain on exchange 9,978 6,030
Unrealised gain on exchange 21,607 72,221

80,443 154,286

Finance cost
Interest expense:

- Leases (36,229) (46,291)
Unrealised loss on exchange (32,297) (90)
uUsD (68,526) (46,381)
Net finance (costs)/income USD 11,917 107,905
15. EXPENSES BY NATURE 2021 2020
' USD USD
Depreciation (note 4) 131,540 110,877
Amortisation of right-of-use assets (note 5) 117,180 129,793
Amortisation (note 6) 1,428 1,427
Meeting expenses 89,193 76,330
Office cxpenscs 58,416 82,551
Travelling expenses 50,617 90,707
Employee benefit expense (note (a)) 2,145,668 2,137,379
Net impairment losscs on financial assets 50,957 56,738
Legal fees 633,807 37,408
Other expenses 840,511 814,763

usD 4,119,317 3,537,973

Analysed into:

Distribution cxpcnses 355,788 345,461
Administrative expenscs 3,712,572 3,135,774
Net impairment losses on financial asscts 50,957 56,738

usb 4,119,317 3,537,973
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15. EXPENSES BY NATURE (CONT'D)
(a) EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 2021 2020
USD UsD
Salaries 1,587,547 1,615,588
Pension costs:
- Other post employment benefits (Note 13) 13,125 14,771
Social security costs and other benefits 544,996 507,020
USD 2,145,668 2,137,379
16. NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Notes 2021 2020
USD uUSsD
(a) Cash generated from operations
Surplus before taxation 1,916,977 2,139,006
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of plant and equipment 4 131,540 110,877
Amortisation of right-of-use assets 5 117,180 129,793
Amortisation of intangible assets 6 1,428 1,427
Losses on scrapped intangible assets - 17,112
Losses on scrapped plant and equipment - 6,990
Net impairment losses on financial assets 7 50,957 56,738
Gain on unrealised foreign exchange (21,607) (72,221)
Variable lease payment adjustment (9,977) -
Retirement benefit obligations 13,125 (1,879
Profit on disposal of plant and equipment - (4,554)
Interest expense 14 36,229 46,291
interest income 14 (48,858) (76,035)
2,186,994 2,353,635
Changes in working capital
- trade receivables 52,186 259,271
- prepayments and other reccivables (213,116) (120,129)
- trade and other payables and contract liabilitics 876,847 443,693
Cash generated from operations UsD 2,902,911 2,936,470
(b) Cash and cash equivalents 2021 2020
USD uUsD
Bank balance 5,525,545 4,907,267
Cash in hand 269 261
USD 5,525,814 4,907,528
Bank balancc is analyscd as follows:
Own Cash Holdings 3,964,291 3,329,803
Fees received in advance 1,545,266 1,561,468
Cash Held - Project/Other FIRE 16,257 16,257
USD 5,525,814 4,907,528
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16. NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONT'D)

(b While cash and cash equivalents arc also subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, the
identified impairment was immaterial.

Cash for FIRE (Fund for Internet Resecarch and Education) represents funding received from IDRC,
ISOC and Google earmarked for FIRE initiatives.

{¢} Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

1 January Non-cash 31 December
2021 Cash flows changes 2021
usD USD USD USD
Lease liabilities 588,750 (151,096) 2,888 440,542
1 January Non-cash 31 December
2020 Cash flows changes 2020
UsD USD USD usD
Lease liabilities 744,804 (155,828) (226) 588,750
17. ACTUARIAL RESERVE 2021 2020
USD USD
At 01 January, , 25,279 (20,254}
Actuarial gain recognised in other comprehensive income 38,295 45,533
At 31 December, USD 63,574 25,279

Actuarial reserve represents the cumulative remeasurement of defined benefit obligation recognised.

18. TAXATION

The Company has been granted exemption from payment of tax by the Ministry of Finance of the
Republic of Mauritius on 16 November 2005.

19. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 2021 2020
UsSD USD
(a) Transaction with members
Membership fees 5,978,261 5,532,620
(b) Transactions with key management personnel (CEQO) of the Company: 2021 2020
USD USD
Short term employee benefit 190,943 179,122

Termination benefit - -
190,943 179,122
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20.

21.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value of instruments

Fair value is defined as the amount for which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's-length transaction, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale. The fair values of the Company's financial instruments, which principally
comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, financial assets at amortised cost and trade and
other payables approximate their carrying values as stated in the statement of financial position.

Carrying value Fair value
2021 2020 2021 2020
USD UsSD USD UsD
Financial assets:-
Trade receivables 56,586 159,729 56,586 159,729
Financial assets at amortised cost 6,384,266 4,338,805 6,384,266 4,338,805
Cash and cash equivalents 5,525,814 4,907,528 5,525,814 4907,528

11,966,666 9,406,062 11,966,666 9,406,062

Financial liabilities:-

Lease liabilities 440,542 588,750 440,542 588,750
Trade and other payables 1,440,718 547,669 1,440,718 547,669
1,881,260 1,136,419 1,881,260 1,136,419

Prepayments and other receivables are not financial assets, and advance payments from members are
not financial liabilities.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
Risk Management
The Company's principal financial liabilitics comprise trade and other payables and lease liabilities.

The Company has various financial asscts such as tradc receivables and cash and cash equivalents
which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Company's financial instruments arc liquidity risk, market risk
(including foreign exchange risk and intcrest rate risk) and credit risk. The Board of dircctors reviews
and agrees policics for managing cach of thesc risks which arc summarised below,

Risk Management

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the- obligations
associated with its financial liabilitics that are scttled by delivery of cash or another financial assct.

Prudent liquidity risk management implics maintaining sufficicnt cash, the availability of funding
through an adequatc amount of committed credit facilitics. The Company aims at maintaining
flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.
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21,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT'D)
Risk Management (cont'd)
Liguidity risk (cont'd)

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilitics at year end
based on contractuat undiscounted cash flows.

Less than Between | Between 2 Over
1 year and 2 years and 5 ycars 5 years
UsD USD UsD USsD
31 December 2021
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 1,440,718 - - -
Lease liabilities 150,475 158,939 182,056 -
1,591,193 158,939 182,056 -
31 December 2020
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 547,669 - - -
Lease liabilities 153,444 161,463 365,642 -
701,113 161,463 365,642 -

Interest rate risk

The Company has interest bearing deposits with fixed rates. It could be exposed to fair value interest
rate risk arising from changes in market interest rates. However, the deposits are short term.

Financial assets and liabilities by category 2021 2020
USD USD

Financial assets at amortised cost 11,966,666 9,406,062

Financial liabilities at amortised cost 1,881,260 1,136,419

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company operates internationally but is

exposed to foreign exchange risks arising primarily with respect to Mauritian rupees ("MUR") and
Euro.

At 31 December 2021, if the USD had strengthened/weakened by 1% against the MUR and Euro with
all other variables held constant, surplus for the ycar would have been lower/higher by USD 1,643
(2020: USD 4,370) mainly as a result of foreign exchange differences on translation of MUR and Euro
denominated bank balances, trade receivables and trade and other payables.
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21. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT'D)
Foreign exchange risk (cont'd)
Financial assets Financial
2021 Cash and assets at
Trade cash amortised
receivables equivalent cost Total
2021 2021 2021 2021
USD USD USD USD
MUR - 50,271 - 50,271
EURO 1,454 458,208 - 459,662
UsD 55,132 5,017,335 6,384,266 11,456,733
56,586 5,525,814 6,384,266 11,966,666
Financial
2020 Cash and assets at
Trade cash amortised
receivables equivalent cost Total
2020 2020 2020 2020
UsD USD UsD USD
MUR - 73,264 - 73,264
EURO 5,429 299,124 - 304,553
usp 154,300 4,535,140 4,338,805 9,028,245
159,729 4,907,528 4,338,805 9,406,062
Financial liabilities Trade and
2021 Lease other
liabilities payables Total
2021 2021 2021
USpb USD USD
MUR 440,542 233,705 674,247
USD - 1,207,013 1,207,013
440,542 1,440,718 1,881,260
Trade and
2020 Leasc other
liabilities payables Total
2020 2020 2020
USD USD USD
MUR 588,750 206,583 795,333
RAND - 19,482 19,482
USD = 321,604 321,604
588,750 547,669 1,136,419
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21.

22.

(a)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT'D)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating
activities, primarily for trade receivables and from its financing activities, including foreign exchange
transactions, and other financial instruments.

The Company trades with recognised, creditworthy third parties only. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Company's exposure to bad debts is not
significant. The advent of Covid-19 has not had a significant adverse impact on the recoverability of
receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company only deposits cash surpluses with major banks of high quality credit standing (MCB:
Baa3 and SBM: Baa3).

Capital management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensurc that it maintains a strong
credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise net assets
attributable to its members.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in the light of changes in
economic conditions. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the year
ended 31 December 2021. The gearing ratio is nil.

2021 2020

USD UsD
Total debt 440,542 588,750
Less: cash and bank balances (Notc 16(b)) (5,525,814) (4,907,528)
Net debt (5,085,272) (4,318,778)
Net asscts attributable to members 9,996,732 8,041,460
Gearing ratio N/A N/A

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 Dccember 2021, there were contingent liabilitics in respect of guarantees for which no
provisions have been made in the financial statements. The guarantecs are denominated in Mauritian
rupees {("MUR"), and are follows:
2021 2020
USD Rs. Ush Rs.

Bank guarantce 232 10,000 254 10,000
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23.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONT'D)

In 2015, Afrinic Board agreed to participate in The Joint Regional Internet Registry Stability Fund.
This is a fund which will be established through voluntary pledges of funds, publicly documented, -
from individual RIRs. The Fund is to be used in case of nced, to guarantee the continuity of registry
operations and related support activities, the latter prominently including regional and global policy
development processes. Any use of funds will be contingent upon having public reporting of audited
financial statements. Afrinic has pledged USD 50,000 towards the Funds.

LITIGATION CASES

AfriNIC (the Company) issued a letter dated 10 March 2021 to Cloud Innovation (CI) informing the
latter of its breaches of the Registration Service Agreement (RSA) and allowed CI 30 days to remedy
the identified breaches or to show cause why the RSA should not be terminated. Instead of engaging
with the Company, on 24 March 2021 CI initiated an application for interim injunction against the
Company before the Honourable Judge in Chambers of the Supreme Court of Mauritins. That
application was set-aside on 07 July 2021. Although CI appealed against that judgment, the appeal was
dismissed with costs on 14 February 2022. Notwithstanding the above, CI also, amongst other
applications for interim injunction, initiated a claim before the Supreme Court claiming compensation
in the sum of §1.8 billion. That casec is strongly resisted by the Company and is still pending. Further,
on 23 July 2021, the Honourable Judge in Chambers of the Supreme Court of Mauritius provisionally
froze up to US$ 50 million of AfriNIC’s funds held at SBM Bank (Mauritius) Ltd and Mauritius
Commercial Bank Ltd (the “Authorisation to Attach Order™). As a consequence, during the period
from 23 July 2021 to 15 October 2021, the Company was unable to honour its financial commitments
and had to seek financial assistance from various organisations. The Company has received funds from
several organisations of total $504,238 recorded in payables. On 15 October 2021, the aforesaid
Authorisation to Attach Order was declared null and void by the Honourable Judge in Chambers
resulting in the Company having unrestricted access to its bank accounts. While there are a number of
actions ongoing against the Company by CI, the Company is confident of successful outcomes, as
cvidenced by the removal of the freezing order in October 2021 on its bank accounts. The following
legal cases are still ongoing, from which it is anticipated that no material liabilitics would arise.
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23. LITIGATION CASES (CONT'D)

Status of ongoing cases between Cloud Innovation Ltd {CI) and AfriNIC

Case Name & case
Date number Nature of case Status Comments
Cloud Innovation Ltd On 12 January 2022, counsel for CI informed the  |No main case has been lodged so far by CI and
vs AFRINIC i.p.o CI lodged a casc against AfriNIC Court that the latter will not be proceeding on its  |based on the motion of CI not to insist on its prayer
Registrar of Companies [secking, inter alia, the status of a prayer for compensation. Counsel for AfriNIC for compensation, the ultimate liabilitics of AfriNIC
(SC/COM/PET/000275 jRegistered Member as well as a objected on the ground that CI cannot split its causc |are estimated at Nil. The case has been fixed for
24-May-21[/2021) financial compensation of $1.8bn of action. The matter is resisted and ongoing. arguments on 30 May 2022,
AFRINIC vs Cloud
Innovation Ltd AfriNIC applied for an ex-parte
SC/COM/ICA/Q0047]1 |discharge or variation of the The application was sct aside on 13 August 2021 |The case has been fixed for arguments on 5 July
26-Jul-21]/2021 Authorisation to attach Order. for not having followed adequate procedure. 2022 on bill of costs.
Cl has to prove on a balance of probabilities that
AfriNIC has caused it prejudice. The ultimate
liabilities of AfriNIC are estimated to 2 maximum
Cl initiated a defamation case by way " [of $50k, inclusive of costs as it is estimated that the
Cloud Innovation Ltd  }of plaint with summons claiming, sum claimed is grossly exaggerated. The case will
vs AFRINIC & Crs inter alia, an amount of $80m from be heard for arguments on sccurity for costs on 13
03-Aug-21{SCR No. 1/212/21 AfriNIC, its Chairperson and its CEO|The matter is resisted and ongoing July 2022
In such type of cascs, the standard to be applied for
a person to be found guilty of civil contempt is the
Cl initiated a first contempt of court criminal standard of beyond reasonable doubt. The
Cloud Innovation Lid  [proccedings against AfriNIC and its ultimate liabilitics of AfriNIC in conncction with
vs AFRINIC & Ors CEO for having allegedly acted this claim are estimated to a maximum of $7k,
(SCR 122087 - against the Order of the Honourable inclusive of costs. The case is returnable on 30 May
03-Aug-21|5A/194/21) Judge A.D Narain dated 13 July 2021 | The matter is resisted and ongoing 2022 for AfriNIC to file its affidavit.
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23. LITIGATION CASES (CONT'D)

Status of ongoing cases between Cloud Innovation Ltd (CI) and AfriNIC (Cont'd)

Case Name & case
Date number Nature of case Status Comments
Cl lodged an application for an The prayers sought are in effect similar to those
injunction to, inter alia, restrain requested and obtained in case bearing reference
AfriNIC from acting on its letter number SN 1947/2021. No monetary value can be
Cloud Innovation Ltd  |dated 27 August 2021 and from ascribed to such type of claim. The case is coming
vs AFRINIC ( SN terminating the membership of CI as for arguments on preliminary objections on 31 May
06-Sep-21]1382/2021) Resource Member. The matter is resisted and ongoing 2022,
Cl initiated an appeal against the
judgement of The Honourable V.
Kwok Yin Sion Yen dated 15
October 2021 setting aside its To the extent that the appeal is not with regard to a
Cloud [nnovation Ltd  |application for validation of the claim in damages, no monetary value can be
vs AFRINIC (SCR. No |Provisional Authorisation to Attach ascribed to such type of claim. The case has been
21-Qct-21]|5C/47/2021) Order dated 23 July 2021 The matter is resisted and ongoing fixed for hearing on 16 January 2023.
Cl applied an interim order in the
nature of an injunction restraining
and prohibiting inter alia AfriNIC
from acting on its board resolution
dated 8 July 2021, or any similar To the extent that this application is not with regard
resolution or its letter of 1 December to a claim in damages, no monetary value can be
Cloud Innovation Ltd  j2021 or any similar letter, which has ascribed to such type of claim. The case was heard
vs AFRINIC (SN the effect of terminating thte on 20 April 2022 on the abuse of court process and
(03-Dec-21{1947/2021) membership of CI with AfriNIC The matter is resisted and ongoing judgment will be delivered on 27 June 2022.
In such type of cases, the standard to be applied for
a person to be found guilty of civil contempt is the
criminal standard of beyond reasonable doubt. The
Cl initiated contempt proceedings ultimate liabilities of AfriNIC in connection with
Cloud Innovation Ltd  |against AfriNIC for having this claim are estimated to a maximum of $7k,
vs AFRINIC (SCR No. |purportedly committed a contempt of inclusive of costs. The case is returnable on 30 May
03-Dec-21|122503-5A/285/21) the order dated 15 July 2021 The matter is resisted and ongoing 2022.
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LITIGATION CASES (CONT'D)

Status of ongoing cases between Cloud Innovation Ltd (CI) and AfriNIC (Cont'd)

Case Name & case
Date number

Nature of case

Status

Comments

Cloud Innovation vs
AFRINIC SCR 22656-
12-)an-22|5A/23/22

Cl initiated a third set of contempt
proceedings against AfriNIC and
against each of its directors for
having purportedly committed a
contempt of the Judge's Order dated 3
December 2021 in application
bearing serial number 19472021

Matter is resisted

[n such type of cases, the standard to be applied for
a person to be found guilty of civil contempt is the
criminal standard of beyond reasonable doubt. The
ultimate liabilities of AfriNIC in connection with
this claim are estimated to a maximum of $7k,
inclusive of costs. The case is retunable on 30 May
2022 for AfTiNIC to file return of service regarding
respondents Nos.2, 4, 5, 7 and 8.

Cloud [nnovation Ltd
vs AfriNIC
(SC/COM/PWS/00022
07-Apr-22|6/2022)

On 7 April 2022, Cl lodged its main
application before the Supreme Court
of Mauritius for an order to, inter
alia, declare the board resolution
dated & July 2021 null and void

Matter is ongoing

To the extent that this application is not with regard
to a claim in damages, no monetary value can be
ascribed to such type of claim. The next returnable
date is on 12 May 2022,

Status of ongoing cases between Cloud Innovation Ltd (CI) and AfriNIC in Seychelles

Cloud Innovation Ltd
03-Nov-21|vs AfriNIC (CS 103/21)

On 3 November 2021, Cl lodged a
plaint before the Supreme Court of
Seychelles for an order restraining
and prohibiting AfriNIC from
terminating or suspending or
revoking the membership of Cl as
resource member and interfering with
the use of the internet number
resources allocated to it

The case is ongoing

To the extent that this application is not with regard
to a claim in damages, the financial liability towards
CI is nil or minimal. The next returnable date for
the case, CS 103/2021 (the Main Case) is on 25
May 2022.
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23.

LITIGATION CASES (CONT'D)

Status of ongoing cases between Cloud Innovation Led (CI) and AfriNIC in Seychelles (Cont'd)

Case Name & case

Date number

Nature of case

Status

Comments

Ex parte: Cloud
Innovation Ltd (MA
239/21) [2021] SCSC

12-Nov-21(751 Injunction

On 12 November 2021, Cl lodged an
ex parte application before the
Supreme Court of Seychelles for an
order in the nature of an interim
injunction restraining and
prohibiting AfriNIC from terminating
or suspending or revoking the
membership of ClI as resource
member and interfering with the use
of the internet number resources
allocated to it

The case is ongoing

On 12 November 2021, the Supreme Court of
Seychelles granted the interim injunction. To the
extent that this application is not with regard to a
claim in damages, the financial liability towards CI
is nil or minimal. The outcome will depend on the
outcome of the Main Case.

Cloud Innovation Ltd
vs AfriNIC (MA

13-Nov-21]239/2021) Contempt

On 13 November 2021, CI lodged an
urgent application by way of motion
and affidavit before the Supreme
Court of Seychelles for the case to be
heard urgently as AfriNIC committed
a contempt to Court by flouting its
undertaking given before the
Supreme Court of Seychelles in the
application bearing number MA
239/2021 arising in CS 103/2021

The case is ongoing

The application is not a claim in damages in which
case, the financial liability for AfriNIC will be nil or
minimal. The cutcome will depend on the outcome
of the Main Case.

Status of other ongoing cases against AfriNIC

Case Name & case

Date number

Nature of case

Starus

Comments

Afri Heldings Lid &
Others vs AFRINIC
(SC/'COM/WRT/00029

12-Jun-20|5/2020) Injunction

Afri Holdings Ltd, Netstyle A. Ltd &
Elad Cohen lodged an application for
an injunction following reclamation
by AfriNIC of misappropriated 1P
number resources

On 3 November 2021, City of Cape Town initiated
an application for leave
(SC/COM/JICA/Q00781/2021) 1o intervene in the
case bearing cause number
SC/ICOM/WRT/000295/2020. The Court granted

the application. The matter is resisted and ongoing

The case was initially fixed for hearing on 18 March
2022 but was removed from cause list. In the
meantime, Afri Holdings Ltd will file its amended
proecipe and affidavits to be exchanged between the
parties. No monetary value can be ascribed to such
type of claim. Case awaiting to be fixed for hearing.
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23. LITIGATION CASES (CONT'D)

Status of other ongoing cases against AfriNIC (Cont'd}

Case Name & case
Date number Nature of case Status Comments
Logic Web Inc. lodged an application
for an injunction against AfriNIC to,
inter alia, restrain and prohibit the To the extent that this application is not with regard
Logic Web Inc. vs latter from taking any step to a claim in damages, no monetary value can be
AfrNIC unilaterally or otherwise to ascribed to such type of claim. Matter has been
(SC/COM/WRT/00070 {purportedly reclaim the IP prefix fixed for arguments on security for costs and
01-Oct-21(5/2021 196.52.0.0/14 Legacy subnet The matter is resisted and ongoing fortification in damages on 5 July 2022,
City of Cape Town vs  [On 3 November 2021, City of Cape
Afri Holdings Lid &  Town initiated an application for
Ors leave (SC/COM/JICA/000781,/2021) To the cxtent that this application is not with regard
SC/COMIJICA/000781 [to intervene in the case bearing cause to a claim in damages, no monetary value can be
03-Nov-21[/2021 number SC/COM/WRT/000295/2020|The Court granted the application, ascribed to such type of claim.
This petition has been initiated by Africa on Cloud
(Pty) Ltd in its capacity as alleged sharcholder of
AFTNIC. Since the latter's status as an alleged
sharcholder has not yet been established by a
competent court, the present petition is therefore
considered premature and procedurally flawed and
AFRICA ON CLOUD |Africa on Cloud (Pty) Ltd initiated a may constitute an abuse of the process of the Court.
(PTY)LTD vs winding up petition against AfriNIC In the event this petition is granted, this will lead to
AFRINIC (SC/COM/P |pursuant to the provisions of the the liquidation of AfriNIC. The case is returnable on
03-Nov-21|ET/000769/2021) Insolvency Act 2009 The matter is resisted and ongoing 19 May 2022 for physical appearance.
Logic Web Inc. lodged a main case
against AfriNIC to, inter alia, restrain
and prohibit the latter from taking
any step unilaterally or otherwise to
purportedly reclaim the IP prefix
196.52.0.0/14 Legacy subnet; and to To the extent that this application is not with regard
declare Logic Web Inc. as the lawful to a claim in damages, no monetary value can be
Logic Web Inc. vs owner of the IP prefix 196.52.0.0/14 ascribed to such type of claim. The case is
08-Dec-21|AfriNIC Legacy subnet The matter is resisted and ongoing returnable on 5 July 2022 for case to be in shape.
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LITIGATION CASES (CONT'D)

Based on the above, management has assessed the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for the next twelve months from the date of signature of these financial
statements and believes that the going concern assumption to be appropriate. It is not expected that material liabilities will arise from the ongoing legal cases based on the facts
available at the date of signature of the financial statcments.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

In January 2022, Cl initiated 2 third set of contempt proceedings against AfriNIC and against each of its directors for having purportedly committed a contempt of the Judge's Order
dated 3 December 2021 in application bearing serial number 1947/2021. The casc is retumable on 30 May 2022 for AfriNIC to file return of service regarding respondents Nos.2, 4,

5,7and 8.

On 7 April 2022, CI lodged its main application before the Supreme Court of Mauritius for an order to, inter alia, declarc the board resolution dated 8 July 2021 null and void. The
next returnable date is on 12 May 2022,
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